
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


March 11, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on March 11, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy Clerk
Patrick Stough, Assistant County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance 


Chairman Brown called the March 11, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow gave a brief PowerPoint presentation on attendance at the 85th Annual Department of
Community Health meeting.  A copy of the PowerPoint presentation, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Commissioner Barlow asked Rabbi Louis Feldstein of the Congregation of B’nai Israel to give the Invocation.  Rabbi
Feldstein then gave the Invocation.


Commissioner Ognio led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Chairman Brown moved to accept the Agenda, to add into the Presentation / Recognition portion of the Agenda the
March for Meals request and certificate, to add the March 7, 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes to the Agenda,
and to move New Business Item #17 to the front of the New Business portion of the Agenda.  Commissioner Barlow
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


(For the purpose of these Minutes, the Agenda items have been renumbered to include the Fayette Senior Services’


recognition and to include the March 7, 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes.) 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Consent Agenda #12







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 2


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation recognizing Congregation B’nai Israel and its contribution to the Fayette County
community.


Commissioner Barlow read the recognition for Congregation B’nai Israel.  Ms. Sharon Hudgins, President of
B’nai Israel, thanked the Board for its recognition of the congregation.  Copies of the request and of the
recognition for Congregation B’nai Israel, identified as “Attachment 2", follow these minutes and are made
an official part hereof.


2. Proclamation of March 15, 2014 as “Master Gardener Extension Volunteer Day.”


Commissioner Allen McCarty read a proclamation for March 15, 2014 as “Master Gardener Extension
Volunteer Day.”  Agricultural and Natural Resource Agent Kim Toal accepted the proclamation on behalf of
the Master Gardeners and spoke briefly about the work of the Master Gardeners and how to become
involved with the program.  Copies of the request and proclamation, identified as “Attachment 3", follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


3. Recognition and presentation of four newly promoted Fire and Emergency Services officers to the
rank of Lieutenant.


Fire Chief David Scarbrough presented four members of the Fayette County Fire Department, along with
their family and friends, to the Board of Commissioners in recognition of their promotions to the rank of
Lieutenant.  Judge Fletcher Sams officiated the oath of office for each of the lieutenants, and the County
Commissioners congratulated the new lieutenants on their promotions.


The newly promoted lieutenants are: Matthew Lanza, Jeffery Roach, Ryan Sanders and Brandon Gibby.


  A copy of the request, identified as Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


4. Recognition and resolution commending the Association of County Commissioners of Georgia
(ACCG) on the occasion of its 100th anniversary.


Commissioner Oddo read the resolution recognizing the ACCG’s 100th Anniversary.  Mr. Ross King,
Executive Director of the ACCG, spoke briefly on the ACCG’s work with Fayette County.  Copies of the
request and proclamation, identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


5. Recognition of Fayetteville, Tyrone, and Peachtree City for being numbered as among the 50 safest
cities in Georgia.


Chairman Brown spoke about the honor Fayette County has to have three of its cities recognized as among
the 50 safest cities in Georgia.  He then invited the elected representatives from Peachtree City, Tyrone,
and Fayetteville to be recognized on behalf of their cities.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 3


6. Recognition of Fayette Senior Service’s participation in the national March for Meals campaign that
will take place through the entire month of March, and of Community Champions Week that will
occur from March 17-21, 2014.


Chairman Brown recognized Fayette Senior Service’s work with the March for Meals campaign, and he
spoke about the Meals on Wheels program in the county.  He then read a certificate on behalf of the Board
recognizing Fayette Senior Service’s work.  Mrs. Nancy Meaders, Director of Fayette Senior Services,
commented on the needs and work in the community.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7",
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING:


7. Consideration of Petition Number RP-051-14 for the Revision of a Recorded Plat for McNiel Farms
Subdivision by adding nine (9) lots as McNiel Farms, Phase II.


Mr. Joseph “Joey” Scanlon, of Scanlon Engineering Group and representing the Scarbrough Group, spoke
to the Board about the need to pass Petition Number RP-051-14.  He gave a PowerPoint presentation,
explaining how the properties were designed in phases on Swanson Road.  He spoke about a recent
property acquisition from the Flower’s family, and that he wanted to use the property as Phase II of McNiel
Farms.  He said the zoning was in place, that he was able to meet the setbacks, and that they were in
agreement with Fayette County to give the needed right-of-way to straighten Swanson Road.  He said there
was no need for additional infrastructures.  


Commissioner Oddo asked if there was a study on the septic system that would be installed.  Mr. Scanlon
replied that the study had been done and it was good soil for a septic system.  


No one else spoke in favor of or in opposition to this petition.  


Community Development Director Pete Frisina provided additional insight on Petition RP-015-14.  He said
that the applicant was just asking permission to move ahead since they still have to go through the platting
process.  It was pointed out that the Planning Commission approved this request with a 4-0 vote.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve Petition Number RP-051-14 for the Revision of a Recorded Plat for
McNiel Farms Subdivision by adding nine (9) lots as McNiel Farms, Phase II.  Commissioner Ognio
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 8", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


8. Consideration of staff’s request to adopt Resolution 2014-07 pertaining to the “Fayette County 2013
Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees, including Comprehensive Plan Amendments for
Updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2014-FY2018)” and
to transmit the document to the Atlanta Regional Commission and the Department of Community
Affairs.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina spoke briefly about his request to adopt 2014-07.  He stated
that it was time to submit the annual report on impact fees to the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) and
the Department of Community Affairs (DCA).  He reminded the Board that Fayette County, and the towns of
Tyrone, Brooks and Woolsey all participate in this program in order to fund the county’s fire service.  He
informed the Board that the report had been completed and he thanked the Finance Department for







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 4


providing the financial information included in the report.  He reported that each of the participating
jurisdictions is in the process of participating in their portion of the reporting process.  Mr. Frisina told the
Board that in 2013 the County collected $131,000.00 for fire impact fees throughout all jurisdictions, and he
pointed out that in 2012 the County only collected $33,000.00. He asked the Board to adopt the transmittal
resolution and authorize staff to transmit the material to the Atlanta Regional Commission and the
Department of Community Affairs.


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.


Commissioner Ognio pointed out that both Swanson Road and Kelly Road were on the Fayette County
Comprehensive Plan Amendment Short Term Work Program Update FY2014 -FY2018- Public Works list,
but that the funding for both roads had been pulled.  He asked for those roads to be removed from
consideration.


Commissioner Ognio moved to adopt Resolution 2014-07 pertaining to the “Fayette County 2013 Annual
Report on Fire Services Impact Fees, including Comprehensive Plan Amendments for Updates to the
Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2014-FY2018),” to transmit the
document to the Atlanta Regional Commission and the Department of Community Affairs, and with the
amendment of removing Swanson Road and Kelly Road from Page 5 of the County Comprehensive Plan
Amendment Short Term Work Program Update FY2014-FY2018- Public Works.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  Copies of the request
and Resolution 2014-07, identified as “Attachment 9", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 9-13.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion. 
No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


9. Approval of staff’s recommendation to approve mid-year budget adjustments for Fiscal Year 2014. 
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


10. Approval of staff’s recommendation to add Stillbrook Estates Phase III to the Fayette County Street
Light Program.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 11", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.


11. Approval of the Water System’s recommendation to waive parking fees at Lake McIntosh Park for
out-of-county participants in the Sailboat Regatta planned for August 2-3, 2014.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 12", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


12. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to allow for the insertion of flyers or other
informational material for recurring events throughout Fayette County.  A copy of the request,
identified as “Attachment 13", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


13. Approval of the February 27, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 5


OLD BUSINESS:


There were no Old Business items on the Agenda.


NEW BUSINESS:


14. Consideration of the Selection Committee’s recommendation to reappoint Mr. Addison Lester to the
Fayette County Board of Elections for a term beginning February 1, 2014 and expiring January 31,
2018.


Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the Selection Committee’s recommendation to reappoint Mr.
Addison Lester to the Fayette County Board of Elections for a term beginning February 1, 2014 and
expiring January 31, 2018.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment 14", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


15. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-03 revising provisions pertaining
to alcoholic beverages, identification cards for employees of licensees, and to days and hours of
operations.


Chairman Brown pointed out that there was an additional document on the dais entitled Proposed Changes
for Section 3-42 ( c) and Proposed Changes for Section 3-43(b).


Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs reported that this recommendation was a housekeeping measure
on the alcohol ordinance that was updated by the Board in 2013.  She said that the referendum had not
been held for on-premises consumption at the time the previous ordinance was adopted by the Board of
Commissioners, and she stated that this effort would add on-premises consumption and the hours allowed
per state law.  Secondly, she stated that Ordinance 2014-03 would update the identification process, and
she reminded the Board that at the time the original ordinance was written there was not a possibility of
having an identification machine.  She stated that the current Board voted to allow for the purchase of an
identification machine, and therefore, the ordinance needed to be revised.  She added that the ordinance
requires employees who serve alcohol to wear their license at all times while at work.


County Administrator Steve Rapson added that the document on the dais was simply the red-line version of
the ordinance before the Board.


Commissioner Barlow moved to accept staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-03 revising
provisions to alcoholic beverages, identification cards for employees of licensees, and to days and hours of
operations, to include proposed changes for Section 3-42 (c) and proposed changes for Section 3-43 (b). 
Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously. 
Copies of the request and Ordinance 2014-03, identified as “Attachment 15", follow these minutes and are
made an official part hereof.







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 6


16. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-04 enacting provisions to Social
Hosts.


Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs informed the Board that she had been approached by several
jurisdictions within the county that are in the process of adopting this same type of ordinance.  She said the
ordinance is based off Cobb County’s model ordinance where they did a study that showed the impact of
underage drinking in a community.  She said Ordinance 2014-04 makes it easier for the Sheriff’s Office to
go to a home where there is an adult, more than 21 years of age, who is providing alcohol to non-family
members, who are less than 21 years of age, and to charge them with the county ordinance.  


Commissioner Oddo moved to accept staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-04 enacting
provisions to Social Hosts.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  


Becky Smith and Dawn Oparah: Ms. Smith and Ms. Oparah, representing Fayette FACTOR, jointly
approached the public speaking podium to speak about Ordinance 2014-04.  Ms. Oparah commended the
staff for making the recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-04, and she wanted to share with the Board
that almost three years ago, Fayette FACTOR got money from the state, cities, and counties to look at
underage drinking and social hosting.  She stated that the goal was to have all of the local law enforcement
working together to have a similar ordinance so that there would be enforced areas throughout the county
in order or prevent social hosting.  She asked for the opportunity, based on previous studies and findings,
to help tweak the ordinance should there be any revisions that have to be made. 


Ms. Smith reiterated that Fayette FACTOR had hoped to gain the community support through presentations
and by going to homeowners associations, civic groups, and different organizations in order to share the
gathered information that alcohol is a problem among teens.  She pointed out that the current ordinances
that are in place do not really provide law enforcement with anything to hold the adults responsible if they
deny that they had any idea alcohol was on the premises.  She said Fayette FACTOR wanted to gain
support from the community so that there would not be push back from the community when law
enforcement comes to break the parties up.


Commissioner Barlow recalled that he was at a Fayette FACTOR meeting where he saw the first
presentation on this issue, and that he was there when a young man spoke about how he had access to
alcohol every morning before he went to school.  He said the number one issue that he recalled was the
deniability from the adults.  He explained that the adults were saying, “My child doesn’t do that,” and that
the child was saying, “Yes we do.”  He said the parents were denying this problem since they did not want
to deal with it.  Commissioner Barlow also recalled that the biggest offense was coming from Peachtree City
residents since they are denying that they have an issue; although it is all over Fayette County.


Ms. Oparah replied that Fayette FACTOR conducted a community assessment to determine how
communities deal with social norms and underage drinking.  She explained that on a scale of one through
nine, with nine being the highest, Fayette County was scored a two.    She stated that the community was
not ready, and that there was a meeting with community leaders in May 2012 where the leaders stated they
did not need a social host ordinance.  She passed pamphlets to each Commissioner showing the work of
Fayette FACTOR as it relates to social hosting.







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 7


Commissioner Barlow asked if Fayette FACTOR engaged the school system in 2012 about social hosting. 
Ms. Oparah said the Fayette County Board of Education has been on board with this initiative since its
inception.  She closed that Fayette FACTOR, as a nonprofit organization, will continue to work on this issue
and with all the community leaders in order to save lives.


Officer Hobbs informed the Board that she received an email inviting her to a meeting later in the week. 
She said she would not be able to make the meeting, but encouraged the requestor to get together to study
and, if needed, to strengthen the ordinance.


Don Haddix: Mr. Haddix agreed that Peachtree City had problem areas that needed to be dealt with, but he
explained that there were extenuating factors that needed to be considered.  He pointed out that while
Peachtree City has problems, it does not tolerate its problems.  He said this is a hard issue to deal with,
that it is an issue that needs to be dealt with, and that there were parents in denial.  He added that there are
parents who are not even home to even know what is going on, and that makes the issue extremely hard to
deal with.  Mr. Haddix stated that when “these things go down” some of the kids do not even live in Fayette
County.  He said there are guns and drugs involved, that the situation is sad, and that the police descend
on the parties immediately.  Mr. Haddix said he was concerned with the issue of coordination, and he
agreed that there has to be coordination between the Sheriff’s Office and the police departments throughout
the entire county.  He emphasized that he supported Ordinance 2014-04, but he stressed that it needed to
be a smooth operation through cooperation.


Larry Younginer: Mr. Younginer informed the Board that he supported Ordinance 2014-04, but that he
wanted the wording to “be done correctly” so that the Sheriff does not have the authority to arrest the
innocent.  He stated that social media allows that any time someone has a party scheduled, that a lot more
people show up than who were invited and they bring things that are unwanted.  He said it was a lot easier
now for a parent to not know what is involved in a party than it was before.  He said the ordinance needed
to be rewritten in such a way that innocent parents who are dealing with uninvited minors will not be
arrested.


No one else spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.


The motion to accept staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-04 enacting provisions to Social
Hosts passed unanimously.  Copies of the request and Ordinance 2014-04, identified as “Attachment 16",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


17. Discussion of Hoop Houses and Detached Rooms in association with zoning regulations for
accessory structures.


Community Development Director Pete Frisina stated that two months ago he did not know what a hoop
house was, but that he knows a lot more about them now.  He stated that recently there have been two
residents who are interested in putting hoop houses on their property, that both of the properties are zoned
as residential, and that crops can be grown under the County’s residential zoning provisions.  He said both
residents grow crops, and that a hoop house is a very inexpensive way to construct a greenhouse-type
structure that is very inexpensive.  He said the hoop house allows gardeners to extend growing seasons for
their crops.  He added that one resident informed him of a federal program to subsidize the materials;
consisting of bent tubular aluminum or PVC framing with plastic or cloth coverings.  Mr. Frisina added that
hoop houses can be small but they can also be very big.  He explained that the current zoning ordinance







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 8


states a person can have up to 1,800 square feet of accessory square footage on their property.  He added
that there is a provision that if a person has five or more acres in residential zoning that they may be able to
get up to 3,600 square feet of accessory square footage on their property.  He stated that the issue at hand
is that the County was not addressing hoop houses and similar structures when the accessory uses were
written.  He stated that the hoop houses do not meet the requirements in terms of materials and
architectural requirements that the County has on typical accessory structures.  He asked for the Board’s
permission to work on this matter.  He said staff had already spoken to the Planning Commission about this
matter, and he asked for the Board’s guidance on the matter.  He explained that these types of structures
would have to have a special section in the Zoning Ordinance to alleviate some of the architectural
requirements.  He added that the staff would need to get with the Permits and Inspections Department to
see what, if any, inspections they would need to look at.  He pointed out that they were not permanent
structures and they are not put into a foundation, but that no one wanted them to be picked up by a heavy
wind and blown into the neighbor’s yard.  He said the County wanted to ensure that the hoop houses were
maintained.  He also suggested that hoop houses would be specifically used to grow plants or crops, and
not serve, as an example, as storage for household items.  


Chairman Brown suggested that the hoop houses should be scalable based on lot sizes.  He thought they
should also stay in good repair.  He added that seasonal provisions could be considered.  Mr. Frisina
replied that it was his understanding that the frames could stay up year round but that there would be some
seasons where the sheeting could be taken off of the hoop house.  Chairman Brown asked if someone
would want a metal skeleton of that structure sitting in a yard all summer long.  


Commission McCarty reminded the audience of his position that people should , depending on their lot size,
have up to half a dozen chickens to keep out bugs, to produce eggs, and to fertilize the garden.  


Commissioner Barlow said that the small hoop house looked like square foot gardening that people could
read about, and he suggested that the hoop designation came about because someone had square foot
gardening that they wanted to cover up during the winter so they could do more gardening.  He thought that
if the hoop house was maintained to the square foot gardening that they would be fine.  He pointed out that
there is a gentleman who does organic growing in Peachtree City, that he has been to the gentleman’s
property, and that he has five or six hoop houses so that he can garden throughout the year.  He said the
man’s hoop houses have irrigation and power installed with them, but he also has the acreage to support
the hoop houses.  Mr. Frisina replied that this issue really would not apply to A-R zoned property.


Commissioner Oddo stated that he likes giving the people liberty to do what they want with their property,
but he agreed to have staff study the issue and come up with suggested limits.  He asked how a
greenhouse differed as an additional structure per the county’s ordinance.  Mr. Frisina replied that the
current county ordinance reads that greenhouses would be built out of typical greenhouse materials such
as steel and glass.  He added that greenhouses have foundations as well.  He said the basics for
accessory structures include solid walls, foundations, and roofs.  He said hoop houses have tubular framing
with some kind of film draped on them.  Commissioner Oddo suggested that, if a person had a big enough
unit, they could conduct a business out of it.  Mr. Frisina replied that the County would not want the
business portion of it to be in a residential lot.  Commissioner Oddo replied that he liked to see people sell
their vegetables and that the ability to sell vegetables gives a little rural flavor to Fayette County that should
not be lost.  







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 9


Commissioner Ognio said he was concerned with the safety of hoop houses, and he suggested that the
wind load on the hoop houses and their round structure would catch wind; becoming very dangerous
objects.  He suggested that the hoop houses would have to be properly anchored to the ground.  Mr.
Frisina replied that was one of the reasons the Buildings Permit and Inspection Department would be
brought in on this matter.


Mr. Frisina then asked the Board for permission to work on studying detached rooms.  He stated that there
were many houses in Fayette County with detached rooms.  He said he did not think the county wanted to
consider detached rooms as accessory structures because of the way they are attached to the house.  He
said staff wanted to look at a few houses with detached rooms to see if there is a way to qualify what really
is a detached accessory structure and what is an integral part of a home.  Chairman Brown suggested that
the distance from the main structure could be a consideration.  Mr. Frisina added that the relationship of
what the structure is could also determine whether the structure is a detached home or an accessory
structure.  


Code Enforcement Officer Kathy Hobbs added that it was her understanding that State of Georgia’s
Agriculture Department allowed for produce that is grown on site to be sold on site.  


The Board agreed to allow staff to look into matters pertaining to hoop houses and detached rooms, but did
not take official action on these matters.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 17", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.


18. Consideration of the request from the Fayette County Chamber of Commerce and Fayette County
Development Authority for Fayette County to support the Fayette Visioning Initiative in the amount
of $10,000.00.


County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that this request came from the Fayette County Chamber of
Commerce asking for Fayette County to support the Fayette Visioning initiative. He added that the memo
attached to the request outlined the information that would be used by the County for the 2017
Comprehensive Plan.  He explained that those deliverables are what was being recommended for approval
with a $10,000.00 contribution.


Commissioner McCarty moved to approve New Business Item 18.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the
motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 18", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


19. Consideration of the March 7, 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes.


Chairman Brown informed the audience that the Commissioners had copies of the March 7, 2014 Special
Called Meeting Minutes on the dais, and that the minutes could be obtained from the County Clerk.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the March 7, 2014 Special Called Meeting Minutes. 
Commissioners Ognio and McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed
unanimously.







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 10


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Roy Bishop: Mr. Bishop said it seemed that the curb-straightening project for Westbridge Road had hit a snag.  He
said the pavement that had been laid was sinking where it meets the bridge, that the “topping” of the asphalt was
lacking so it was making a lot of noise and had a large bump that could knock a vehicle out of alignment.  He asked
the Board to give the project a boost and to complete the project.  County Administrator Steve Rapson said he would
ensure that Mr. Bishop was updated on the progress of the work.


Emory McHugh: Mr. McHugh spoke about his professional background.  He said he wanted to comment on Fayette
County’s finances.  First, he thanked the Fayette County voters for defeating the Stormwater SPLOST and
questioned why the issue was even on the ballot since Chairman Brown and Commissioner McCarty voted against
the creation of the utility, and since Commissioner Ognio spoke passionately about its evils during public comments
at that meeting.  


Second, he suggested that county staff was using accounting terminology such as “revenues” and “expenses”
inappropriately.  He said he thought there might be a training problem with staff, so he submitted an Open Records
Request in December 2013 to ascertain whether the County Administrator and the Chief Financial Officer had
completed a sufficient number of Continuing Education Hours to maintain their active license as a Certified Public
Accountant.  He stated that in response to the Open Records Request from “the most transparent county
government that has ever been in existence,” he received a reply from the County Clerk informing him that since it
would take six hours of staff time to obtain the information the cost would be $86.99 plus copy fees.  He stated that
he replied that he communicated to the County Clerk that six hours was excessive and provided suggestions on how
to quickly fulfill the search.  Mr. McHugh told the Board that he received another communication from the County
Clerk saying the Finance Department could do the search within two hours at a cost of $28.99.  He said he agreed to
the cost provided that he would receive a signed statement from the employee who did the work that it actually took
two hours to provide the information.  Mr. McHugh replied that when he showed up to retrieve the records, they were
given to him at no cost.  Mr. McHugh said that once he received the material from the County, along with a response
from the City of Union City saying it had no responsive records, he put the material on a spreadsheet and concluded
that he was unable to tell whether the individuals received the necessary training to hold an active CPA license.  


Third, Mr. McHugh said he again wanted to take the “most transparent county government to task” by pointing out
that on January 6, 2012 and on February 14, 2013, the audit firm that performed the annual financial audits did a
public presentation about the results of the audit.  He pointed out that the most recent audit was completed in
December but that there has not been an open, public discussion that has taken place.  Mr. McHugh then stated that
during the recent ice storms he printed out the County’s financial statements.  Mr. McHugh then provided additional
personal background, saying he served on the Review Committee for the Government Finance Officers Association
which awards the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.  He added that he has done a lot
of financial reviews, as well as prepared financial statements in the past.  He said during his recent review of the
County’s financial statements that he made several findings.  He asked the people to look at Page 23 of the
County’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), it could be observed that the county staff has concluded
that the governmental activities had a change in net financial position of -$7,212,323.00.  He said if someone was
looking at the county from a business perspective, staff is reporting that Fayette County lost $7.2 million in Fiscal
Year 2013.  Mr. McHugh then asked for people to look at Page 45 of the CAFR, and he said it provides the same
statements on a governmental accounting basis.  He said the modified accrual basis is a “kind of a cash flow
accounting thing,” and it showed that the same governmental activities lost $13,684,930.00.  He concluded that from
either of those two perspectives, whether as a business or as a government, the county is experiencing a great deal
of financial distress.  Mr. McHugh anticipated that the Commissioners would say they are not responsible for the
financial distress, but he responded that Commissioner McCarty voted for the budget that was approved for Fiscal







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 11


Year 2013.  He added that all five of the present Commissioners were in office for six months during that period, and
that they did negative budget adjustments just like they did as part of the Consent Agenda.  He said the current
Board of Commissioners were the ones who made a decision to give away $17.5 million of Local Option Sales Tax
(LOST) to the cities.


Commissioner Barlow interjected into Mr. McHugh’s comments saying that the Commissioners had heard this 
“diatribe” before, and he recommended to Chairman Brown that Mr. McHugh be stopped from giving further public
comments.  He added that County Administrator Steve Rapson had already addressed the LOST issue, that Mr.
McHugh was throwing around a bogus figure.  He added that Mr. McHugh had already shared with the Board that he
is the smartest guy in the County, knowing more than Mr. Rapson or Mrs. Parrott combined, and that the Board
understood that he was brilliant with what he does and that everybody else are losers.  Commissioner Barlow
insisted that he would not sit in the meeting and have Mr. McHugh continue to put bogus information on the record. 
He then, once again, asked Chairman Brown to stop Mr. McHugh.


Chairman Brown addressed Mr. McHugh, saying he had beaten the LOST issue to death.  Mr. McHugh asked to be
provided the opportunity to complete his comments.  Chairman Brown replied that the Board and staff had heard Mr.
McHugh speak for up to fifteen minutes at a time on the LOST negotiations.  Mr. McHugh replied that he was more
than half way through his comments.


Mr. McHugh stated that if there are any citizens who want to take the time to review the financial information on the
website that he would like to point out a couple of things that will assist them on understanding the information being
presented.  He asked people to look at the Table on Page 29 of the CAFR, and stated they would notice a difference
in the transfer category for FY2012 and FY2013.  He suggested that the reason for that difference is that
$539,650.00 has been credited back against expenditures in the FY2013 presentation.  He explained that, in effect,
it skews the numbers so that FY2013 looks better than FY2012.  He continued stating that if the figures are
compared on an apple to apple basis, it would be discovered that the total expenses for FY2013 were actually more,
not less, than FY2012– and that was after the Early Retirement Program was implemented in FY2012.  


Mr. McHugh then asked people to look at the statistic tables on Page 135 of the CAFR; he stated that the
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 44 requires that the difference be noted in the footnote
section.  He explained that this is an important disclosure so that people looking at comparative financial information
are actually able to understand it.  


Mr. McHugh continued saying that another intriguing set of accounting entries could be found on statements
provided on Pages 47-49.  He said they show the results of operations for the Stormwater Utility Fund.  He said the
first thing worthy of noting is the difference between the Accounts Receivable numbers between the two fiscal years. 
He said on Page 31 of the CAFR the reason given for the difference is that there was a delay in the billing pending
the outcome of the SPLOST vote.  He stated that if someone looked at the record, it would be discovered that the
two billings actually occurred very closely in timing since it occurred in November of the years in question.  Mr.
McHugh suggested that basic Accounting 101 dictates that if there is a calendar year and someone is being charged
for it, half of the revenue should go in for half a year and the other half of the revenue should go in the other year. 
He suggested that if that does not happen, then the person is over billed.  Mr. McHugh stated his next finding in the
Stormwater Utility Fund is that staff reported $155,604.00 in unearned revenue.  He said he was unsure how it could
be unearned if someone is being charged for it since the revenue should be going for the services received with
stormwater.  Mr. McHugh continued saying he was unsure what has been done with the money that did reside in the
Capital Projects Funds that had been allocated by previous Boards to address stormwater infrastructure problems
that do exist.







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 12


He then spoke about the “tabular contacts” provided on Page 74 of the CAFR.  He said the Commissioners should
be particularly interested in the $10,070,183.00 that is shown as an increase and the $1,197,566.00 shown as a
decrease in Construction and Progress.  He asked people to look at the capital outlay numbers on Page 45, he
suggested that the vast majority of the increases in Construction and Progress come from the Capital Projects Fund. 
He said the problem is that about $2 million of the SPLOST fund should be shown as an intergovernmental
expenditure, not as a capital outlay.  He said the Board of Commissioners decided to give that money to the City of
Fayetteville for the Hood Avenue intersection improvement.  He stated that Mr. Lynn Robinson and Mr. Joe Morton
got the numbers right, but that the county is booking the money as an intergovernmental revenue.  He concluded
that it means that $9 million, not $7 million, has been lost.  He also thought it was interesting that the number in
Construction and Progress did not change much, and he concluded that the numbers were not being depreciated;
meaning expenses are being understated.


Mr. McHugh then pointed out that another finding was located on Page 90 under the caption of Prior Period
Adjustments.  He thought that the county staff found it necessary to go back and consider the small transponders on
the top of the county’s water meters as capital assets, even though their costs fall well under the threshold for
capitalization as defined on Page 63 as an asset “having an individual cost of more than $5,000.00.”  He explained
that the transponder is a silver looking disc about the size of a small saucer that sits on top of a meter box that
transmits water usage data, and that its individual cost is only about $300.00.  He said the reason given in the report
is that it was determined that these purchases extended the useful life, but he concluded that the explanation did not
make sense, if a person is replacing an old unit with a new unit, it is a simple replacement.  He thought it was
interesting that the transponders were expensed the first time they were installed.  He mentioned that the Revenue
Bonds issued by the Water System have a Rate Covenant, and basically it is a promise by the county that they will
set rates where net revenues will cover the debt service on the bonds by 120%.  He stated that in return for the risk
reduction, the bond holders take a lower interest rate.  Mr. McHugh stated that during the preparation of the FY2012
statements, he brought to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer that it was his belief that the county was not
meeting its required metric, and that it was obvious that his suspicions were well founded since staff determined that
they had to capitalize the transponders in order to meet the bond covenant.


Mr. McHugh then stated that there was one final thing in the financial statements that brought home the point he
tried to make during the last budget hearing on capital maintenance, and he asked people to look at the schedule on
Page 126 of the CAFR pertaining to Vehicle Replacement Fund.  He stated that the County has accumulated only
$3.4 million in cash through its internal service charges to replace more than $12 million in depreciation recognized
on its vehicles and machinery.  He suggested that somewhere down the road, the county taxpayers will have to
come up with the additional $8.6 million shortfall.  


He stated that final issue he had to talk about relates to Consent Agenda Item #8.  He stated that if a person looked
at the first bullet point, it could be observed where the county decided to reimburse itself out of the unspent Criminal
Justice Center proceeds that were found hidden in the bank somehow.  He said with the last refunding, the Board
had given affidavits that the project was deemed as incomplete.  He thought it was interesting that $394,230.50 had
been transferred to a Project Contingency Account.  He said this budget maneuver is the same thing that the current
Board harped on the previous Board about, namely, taking money out of fund balance.  


Commissioner McCarty pointed out that Mr. McHugh had mentioned he had voted in favor of a budget, and he
asked if he was the only Commissioner to vote for the budget.  Mr. McHugh replied that Commissioner McCarty was
not the only commissioner to vote for the budget.  Commissioner McCarty asked why Mr. McHugh directed his
comments to him.  Mr. McHugh said he wanted to make sure that Commissioner McCarty would not wash his hands
and claim to have nothing to do with it.  Commissioner McCarty replied that he had never made that statement. 







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 13


Commissioner McCarty also asked Mr. McHugh if his taxes had gone up.  Mr. McHugh replied that his taxes had not
increased, but that government was about sustainability of services.  Commissioner McCarty asked Mr. McHugh if
he received the same services.  Mr. McHugh replied that Commissioner McCarty had not listened to him since he
would have understood the financial condition the county was getting into.


Frank DeStadio: Mr. Destadio said he was a 15-year resident of Fayette County, a veteran of the United States Air
Force, and that he attends Commissioners meetings for many different reasons.  He commended the Board since he
had never been to a meeting before where the Board allowed people to stand up and talk about whatever they
wanted to talk about, but he thought it was very stressful at times.  He thought it was not very wise to allow some
people like attorneys to plead their case as if they were in front of a Grand Jury for prolonged periods of time or for
individuals to read about their personal opinions for twenty or more minutes.  He recalled that the Board and Mr.
Rapson received an award from an organization that recognized their due diligence with the budget and their
financial records.  As a Fayette County citizen, Mr. DeStadio asked the Board to reconsider some opportunity for
people to speak but with some kind of limit since it is taking too long to listen to someone’s personal opinion.


Larry Younginer: Mr. Younginer said when he leaves home to come into Fayetteville he often takes State Route
279 to State Route 314.  He told the Board that several years ago, State Route 279 was slightly redirected to make it
more of a ninety-degree turn with State Route 314, and in so doing the four-way stop was replaced with traffic lights.
He reported that when a person is traveling south on State Route 279 they have to  get within 100-yards of the light
before they can see it, and for a person driving north on State Route 279 that driver would be within 150-yards of the
light before they could see it.  He suggested that it would be a lot safer if there were an offset light on State Route
279 indicating the status of the actual traffic light since there have been several accidents in the area that he
attributed to drivers not knowing the traffic signal until they are at the signal.  Chairman Brown agreed that Mr.
Younginer made a good point.


Commissioner Charles Oddo: Commissioner Oddo stated that he had confidence in the Fayette County Finance
Department, that it is staffed with very capable people, and that while he appreciated Mr. McHugh’s concerns he
thought Mr. McHugh was stressing just a little too much.  He reiterated that the County had good people working for
it, and he was proud to be a part of it.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Appointment of an Official County Representative for ACCG County Roll Call:  County Administrator Steve
Rapson reported that the Association of County Commissioners Georgia is celebrating their 100th anniversary and
that the association had asked the County to appoint an official from the County to represent Fayette County at the
ACCG County Role Call on April 12, 2014.  He stated that he was uncertain what the duties would entail but that it
would probably be a flag ceremony.  Chairman Brown asked if the official would also be the voting member, and Mr.
Rapson replied that he thought that was the case.  Commissioner Barlow volunteered to represent Fayette County at
the Roll Call, and the Board consented to have Commissioner Barlow represent Fayette County.


Update on Swanson Road and Kelly Drive:  County Administrator Steve Rapson reminded the Board that
Swanson Road was brought up earlier in the meeting.  He then informed the Board that both Swanson Road and
Kelly Drive were dirt-paved roads whose projects were tabled during the budget process earlier this year.  He
explained that being tabled from the budget does not mean that those projects have been swept away, but that they
have simply been tabled until funding is available in the operating budget to facilitate taking care of existing roads
that are already paved.  He reported that the homeowners on Kelly Drive and Swanson Road have already been
notified about this matter.







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 14


Response to Mr. Emory McHugh’s Public Comments: County Administrator Steve Rapson said he wanted to
respond to some of the highlights from Mr. McHugh’s comments.  He said that he would not go over his professional
background since he would let balanced budgets and efficiencies speak for him.  He stated that, in regards to Mr.
McHugh’s differences concerning revenues, recognition, and much of the accounting structure, that Mr. McHugh
wrote a very detailed report when he was terminated by the County that the auditors disagreed with after their
review.  Mr. Rapson thought it was ironic that Mr. McHugh would speak at this meeting since on the March 27, 2014
Agenda, which is the next County Commission meeting, the Board would hear the audit presentation.  Mr. Rapson
added that the County has a clean audit, and he stated that the County would receive its recognition of getting the
Distinguished Budget Award.  Concerning Mr. McHugh’s comments about CPA records, Mr. Rapson told the Board
that both he and Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott have their CPA records, that both he and Mrs. Parrott are
current with the Secretary of State’s Office, that they have met all of their hours and then some, and that he was not
sure where Mr. McHugh’s concerns were coming from.  Pertaining to the audited financial information, Mr. Rapson
said he was not sure what Mr. McHugh was referencing, but he did know that Mr. McHugh was referencing the Local
Option Sales Tax (LOST) which was negotiated.  He emphasized that “saying $17.5 million numerous times does
not make that real,” but that the current Board would take credit for $2.5 million that was settled but $15 million of
that was given away by the previous administration when they started at fifty-percent. Mr. Rapson said Mr. McHugh
did make one comment that he did agree with, namely, his statistical comment since it is an audit adjustment that
was made that the auditors agreed with pertaining to the prior period adjustment.  He explained that in addition to
the Criminal Justice proceeds, Mr. McHugh takes issues with how the County was treating that, but those proceeds
are being treated not only with the approval of the auditors but also with the approval of the Bond Counsel.  Mr.
Rapson understood that Mr. McHugh has strong opinions, that he appreciated Mr. McHugh’s passion he has for
being a CPA, but that it does not always make someone right in this situation.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Pending Litigation, Threatened Litigation, and Review of Executive Session Minutes: Assistant County
Attorney Patrick Stough reported that one item of Pending Litigation, one item of Threatened Litigation, and review of
the February 27, 2014 Executive Session Minutes and of the March 7, 2014 Executive Session Minutes needed to
be considered in Executive Session.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow said he was not trying to usurp Chairman Brown’s authority, but that
Mr. McHugh was going over the same ground as before, and that he had already spewed his diatribe from months
back, and he did not think either the citizens or the Board needed to sit in the room and listen to it over again.  He
said he appreciated that Chairman Brown responded to the comments since he responded the exact same way the
last time.  He suggested that Mr. McHugh was not living in reality, that he is a disgruntled ex-employee with Fayette
County, and he thought when there is an individual like that come to the meeting that the Board should have the
right to have the Marshals escort him out of the building if he is going to be spewing nonsense.  Commissioner
Barlow added that if Mr. McHugh wants to come to a meeting and make a valid point, then there would not be one
person on the Board of Commissioners that would ask him to stop and that everyone was interested in what every
citizen has to say.  


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty asked why Mr. McHugh was singling him out as being the one he
named who voted on the item since it was something “we all had a hand in.”







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 15


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo replied that tax season here and reminded everyone to be cognizant of
that matter.  He then said that a “very little bird” told him something and he asked the Board to congratulate Deputy
County Clerk Tameca White for one year with Fayette County.  Chairman Brown added that Ms. White “does a great
job running the County, and that he appreciated it.”  Commissioner Oddo added that many of the Commissioners
would be traveling to Tifton, Georgia, and that he would take the last course before he would become Certified.  He
said the training wheels would then come off and he would be an official Commissioner.  He closed by wishing
everyone a wonderful St. Patrick’s Day.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown thought it was great that County Administrator Steve Rapson and Fire Chief
David Scarbrough did their promotions at the Board of Commissioners meetings.  He thought the promotion
ceremony was really well done, that it means much to the families, and it is a great opportunity to celebrate their
achievements.  He said the parents and spouses who attended the meeting were glowing.  He thanked Chief
Scarbrough for bringing the promotion ceremony to the Board of Commissioners meeting.  Chairman Brown then
responded to Mr. McHugh’s comments by saying Mr. McHugh is correct when he speaks about Fayette County
having the most open format in the State of Georgia.  He stated that Mr. McHugh would have been kicked out of
meetings a long time ago, or he would have been reduced to three minutes, anywhere else across the state.  He
pointed out that most of the people who speak during Public Comment come with respect, integrity, stating facts,
stating heartfelt comments, and many times praising the County on various items.  He stated that the Board is all
about free speech and being able to give people the ability to say what they want.  He asked that the Board not allow
a few rotten apples ruin it for everybody.  Chairman Brown pointed out that Mr. McHugh used to work for the County,
that he became disgruntled and left the County, that the County actually hired him back many years later, and that
Mr. McHugh again became disgruntled and left again.  He said it has been an on-and-off relationship with Mr.
McHugh over the years and that he beats things to death.  Chairman Brown thought it was interesting that Mr.
McHugh was claiming that the County was losing a lot of money through the  Local Option Sales Tax, but the truth is
that the previous Board of Commissioners, with a three-member voting leverage, were trying to force a formula onto
the cities that was not practical and was not fair.  Chairman Brown pointed out that there were several mayors sitting
in the audience who could verify what he was saying.  He said the LOST negotiations went into arbitration and
nothing happened.  He said the LOST negotiations then went into a lawsuit for a year and nothing happened.  He
then stated that the current Board came into office and looked at how to work out a deal with the cities to try to find
the best win-win situation available.  Chairman Brown stated that Mr. McHugh labels that effort as “a huge loss” and
“a defeat” and believes the County is losing unincorporated tax dollars.  Chairman Brown emphasized that all the
Board of Commissioners did was to work with the cities.  He stated that the Board was working under a motto that “If
the cities are thriving, the County is thriving.”  He closed that Mr. McHugh has opinions, that he freely gives them,
and that most of them are not worth the paper they are written on.  But he repeated that it was important not to let a
couple of bad apples ruin a great program that Fayette County has where it is the most open and transparent
government out there where people are able to give their say.  He acknowledged that there are people who speak
for longer periods of time, but it “is great stuff”, and often it is information that needs to be heard and that can change
the direction the County is working in.  He said the people of Fayette County bring a lot of information to the table for
the County’s consideration.  He thought it was great to see people in the audience, and he recalled coming to
County Commission meetings prior to the current Board being elected into office, and that the meeting included six
staff members and a couple of citizens.  He said now people are coming to the meetings, they are speaking out and
are being a part of their government, and that they feel welcome to the meetings where they are able to give
comments that are listened to and acted upon.  He thanked Ms. Oparah and Ms. Smith for coming to the meeting
and giving their comments.







Minutes
March 11, 2014
Page Number 16


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio commented that on the Local Option Sales Tax negotiations saying
the County came really close, if there had been no settlement, to both the cities and the County losing the lawsuit
altogether.  He said that, due to the Board’s cooperative effort with the cities, the LOST was kept.  He thought Mr.
McHugh needed to review LOST’s history and what was really accomplished.


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty stated that anyone, anywhere in the world with an internet
connection, can look at tonight’s meeting live as it happens, as well as the next meetings, and all of the meetings are
put in a file where previous meetings can be viewed.  He asked how much more open a government can be than
that.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Pending Litigation, Threatened Litigation, and Review of Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved
to go into Executive Session.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion
passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 9:02 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 9:18 p.m.


Return to Official Session and Approval of the Executive Session Affidavit:  Commissioner Ognio moved to exit
Executive Session and for the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioner McCarty seconded
the motion. No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


February 27, 2014 Executive Session Minutes and March 7, 2014 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown
moved to approve the February 27, 2014 Executive Session Minutes and the March 7, 2014 Executive Session
Minutes.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A
copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 19", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


ADJOURNMENT:


Chairman Brown moved to adjourn the March 11, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


Chairman Brown adjourned the March 11, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting at 9:18 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 27th day of March 2014.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk












AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


March 27, 2014
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, and Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of Fayette County’s 2014 All-County Girls and Boys Basketball
Team.


2. Recognition of Carter and Olivia, the founders of One More Generation.


3. Proclamation recognizing April 2014 as “Confederate History and Heritage
Month” and April 26, 2014 as “Confederate Memorial Day.”


4. Recognition of Mr. Brad Boemanns as the 2014 Fayette County Firefighter
of the Year.


5. Recognition of Nina Madrid, Business Systems Administrator, and Dianne
Crownover, Permits Technician, for being selected to receive the Team
Player Award.


6. Presentation by Fayette County’s auditing firm, Nichols, Cauley &
Associates, LLC., of the results of the Fiscal Year 2013 annual audit.


7. Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association
Distinguished Budget Award for Fayette County’s annual budget document
for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2014.


PUBLIC HEARING:


CONSENT AGENDA:


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to implement the proposed grade
changes and resulting salary adjustments for the Water Protection Division
of the Fayette County Water System, as prepared by The Carl Vinson
Institute of Government and the University of Georgia.


9. Approval of staff’s request to obtain an enclosed trailer from District 4
Public Health for the storage and transportation of emergency shelter
supplies for the Fayette County Fire and EMS Department.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Manager
Dennis Davenport, County Attorney


Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Deputy County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
March 27, 2014
Page Number 2


10. Approval of staff’s recommendation to add Southmill Subdivision to the Fayette County Street Light
Program.


11. Approval of a request from Promise Place to authorize the Chairman to sign a Local Government Approval
Form, as required by the Department of Community Affairs, affirming the organization’s efforts to obtain
funding through the Emergency Solutions Grant.


12. Approval of the March 11, 2014 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


13. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to increase the sewer billing fees that the Water System charges
to the Peachtree City Water & Sewerage Authority, the City of Fayetteville, the Town of Tyrone, and the
Town of Brooks from $1.00 to $1.62.


14. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-05 revising provisions pertaining to
Motorized Carts within unincorporated Fayette County.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


ADJOURNMENT:












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Consent Agenda #11


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Approval of a request from Promise Place to authorize the Chairman to sign a Local Government Approval Form, as required by the 


Department of Community Affairs, affirming the organization's efforts to obtain funding through the Emergency Solutions Grant. 


Promise Place is a non-profit organization that operates a domestic violence shelter.  The shelter has been in existence since 2007. 


 


In an effort to secure funding that will be used to secure housing for those who leave the shelter, Promise Place is applying with the 


Department of Community Affairs to obtain Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funds.  The application process has three phases.  


Promise Place has completed Phase One.  Phase Two requires approval from local government, in this case, from Fayette County.  The 


Department of Community Affairs wants the local governments to be aware of the funding that is coming to the county in order to avoid 


any duplications and to promote collaboration between any entities which receive funding to address the homeless. 


 


This request does not have any funding obligation for Fayette County.


Approval of a request from Promise Place to authorize the Chairman to sign a Local Government Approval Form, as required by the 


Department of Community Affairs, affirming the organization's efforts to obtain funding through the Emergency Solutions Grant. 


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This is an example of Fayette County working in cooperation with its non-profit organizations for the betterment of those in need.


ConsentThursday, March 27, 2014







 


 


 


March 14, 2014 


Dear Fayette County Commissioners, 


Promise Place is in the process of applying for funding from Georgia Department of Community 


Affairs to assist with costs of operating our domestic violence shelter. This funding is through a 


grant called Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG). This year we will also be applying for some 


funding called Rapid Re-Housing to assist our clients with securing housing when they leave our 


program. This is the 3
rd


 time that our agency is applying. There are 3 phases to this application 


and we have already completed Phase One.  This 2
nd


 Phase requires approval from local 


government – which in our case is Fayette county. Although our shelter has been in existence 


since 2007 and the county is already aware of our services this is just a requirement by DCA of 


all non-profit applicants. They like local governments to be aware of what funding may be 


coming into the county to avoid any duplications and also to promote collaboration between 


any entities which receive funding (including HUD programs) to address the homeless. 


Thank you so much for taking the time to look at this request again this year. 


Sincerely, 


 


Vanessa Wilkins 


Executive Director 


 


 











 2014 ESG Application Documents Page 1 


 
Local Government Approval 


 


To: Georgia Department of Community Affairs 
Subject: 
 


2014 Application for Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) 
 
Applicant:        


 
HMIS Agency Key:  
      


  


Based on a review of the application and/or supporting documents submitted by the above named 
applicant – 


1. The programs named below are within the jurisdiction of the this local government; and  
2. They are approved for funding by DCA.   


 


Program Name  


Program Type – I Shelter, II Transitional,  
III Services Only, IV Homelessness 
Prevention, V Rapid Re-Housing, VI Project 
Homeless Connect, VII Street Outreach, VII 
Hotel/Motel Vouchers, or IX HMIS 


HMIS 
Program 


Key 


Amount 
Requested 


                        


                        


                        


                        


                    


                        


 Total DCA Funds 
Requested:       


 


In making this approval, we reserve the right to withdraw it, in whole or in part, at any time. 


       
 Name of Approving Local Government 


By:  
      


    
      


 
 


 Name of Authorized Official  Signature of Authorized Official  Date  


 
Note that local government approval is required for nonprofit ESG applicants by law.  Local boards and 
authorities are encouraged to collaborate and plan with local governments, continuums of care and other 
organizations that serve persons experiencing or at risk of homelessness but do not have to obtain official local 
approval. Please return executed approval to Applicant.  This format designed and administered by the Office of 
Program and Public Affairs, GA Department of Community Affairs (DCA), 60 Executive Park South, NE, Atlanta, 
GA  30329.  DCA Contact: Jonathan Cox, (404) 679-0571, email: jonathan.cox@dca.ga.gov. 





		Administration- Promise Place Agenda Request File

		Administration- Promise Place Backup

		DCAdeadlines

		Administration- Promise Place Backup

		Administration- Promise Place Backup

		1

		LocalApprovalForm



		DCAdeadlines







		Text3: 

		Legal_Applicant: Fayette County Council on Domestic Violence

		Program_Name_1: Fayette County Council on Domestic Violence

		Program_Type_1: [I Shelter]

		Program_Key_1: 

		Amt_Requested_1: 30000.00

		Program_Name_2: Fayette County Council on Domestic Violence

		Program_Type_2: [V Rapid Re-Housing]

		Program_Key_2: 

		Amt_Requested_2: 10000.00

		Program_Name_3: 

		Program_Type_3: [(Select)]

		Program_Key_3: 

		Amt_Requested_3: 

		Program_Name_4: 

		Program_Type_4: [(Select)]

		Program_Key_4: 

		Amt_Requested_4: 

		Program_Name_5: 

		Program_Type_5: [(Select)]

		Program_Key_5: 

		Amt_Requested_5: 

		Program_Name_6: 

		Program_Type_6: [(Select)]

		Program_Key_6: 

		Amt_Requested_6: 

		Amt_Requested_TOTAL: 40000.00

		Approving_Govt: 

		Approving_Official_Name: 

		Approving_Official_Date: 








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Presentation/Recognition #1


Commissioners Steve Brown


Recognition of Fayette County's 2014 All-County Girls and Boys Basketball Team.


Fayette County is pleased to recognize the 2014 All-County Girls and Boys Basketball Teams.   


 


The recognitions consist of a first team, second team and honorable mentioned team.  This year, three of the girls teams made it to the 


state playoffs and four of the boys teams represented in the AAAA playoffs. 


 


The coaches, players and parents have worked hard to achieve such a recognition and the Board of Commissioners wishes to recognize 


the teams for their accomplishments. 


Recognition of Fayette County's 2014 All-County Girls and Boys Basketball Team.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, March 27, 2014












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Proclamation recognizing April 2014 as "Confederate History and Heritage Month" and April 26, 2014 as "Confederate Memorial Day."


Confederate History Month has been annually designated by six state governments in the United States for recognizing and honoring the 


history of the Confederate States of America.  Those six states are:  Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Louisiana, Mississippi, Texas, and 


Virginia. 


 


The Confederacy played a pivotal part of Georgia's and the South's history, and had a direct impact on the citizens of Fayette County. 


 


Confederate Memorial Day had its start in 1866 when the Ladies Memorial Association of Columbus, Georgia passed a resolution to set 


aside one day each year memorializing Confederate dead.  The date, April 26, was chosen since it signified Confederate General 


Johnston's final surrender to General Sherman at Bennett Place, North Carolina which, to many, marked the official end of the Civil War. 


 


In 1868, General John A. Logan, commander in chief of the Union Civil War Veterans Fraternity, launched the Memorial Day holiday that 


is currently observed throughout the United States.  General Logan's wife stated that her husband borrowed from the practices of 


Confederate Memorial Day and wrote of him: " . . . it was not too late for the Union men of the nation to follow the example of the people 


of the South in perpetuating their memory of friends who had died for the cause they thought just and right."


Proclamation recognizing April 2014 as "Confederate History and Heritage Month" and April 26, 2014 as "Confederate Memorial Day."


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, March 27, 2014



fjones

Typewritten Text

Presentation/Recognition #3







PROCLAMATION


CONFEDERATE HISTORY AND HERITAGE MONTH


WHEREAS, April was chosen as the month to recognize Confederate History and
Heritage because that was the month, in 1861, that the Civil War began
in earnest on April 12 when Confederate forces fired upon Fort
Sumter, a key fort held by the Union troops in South Carolina; and


WHEREAS, The citizen-soldiers who fought for the Confederacy personified the
qualities of courage, endurance, and patriotism; maintaining that
preservation of liberty and freedom was the motivating factor in th
South’s decision to fight what they believed to be a Second American
Revolution; and


WHEREAS, The tenacity with which the Confederate soldiers fought underscored
their belief in rights guaranteed by the Constitution; and


WHEREAS, Fayette County, Georgia sent nearly 1,000 men into battle out of a total
county population of around 7,000 citizens, constituting about 14% of
county residents, 379 of whom made the ultimate sacrifice for their
cause; and


WHEREAS, The Sons of Confederate Veterans are preserving the history and legacy
of the men and women who both lived and died during the Civil War
so that future generations can understand the motives that animated
the Southern Cause; and


WHEREAS, The Sons of Confederate Veterans encourages all Georgians to learn
and understand more about Georgia’s rich history revolving around
the Civil War; 


NOW, THEREFORE, WE, The Fayette County Board of Commissioners do hereby proclaim
April 2013 as CONFEDERATE HISTORY AND HERITAGE MONTH and April 26,
2013 as CONFEDERATE MEMORIAL DAY, and in doing so, as part of our continuing
effort to recognize the diversity of people who reside in our great county, we encourage all
our citizens to become more knowledgeable of the role the Confederate States and their
causes playing in the development and the history of Fayette County, Georgia, and of the
Unites States of America.


So Proclaimed this 27th Day of March 2014


_______________________
        Steve Brown,  Chairman





		Commissioners- Confederate History Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Confederate History Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Presentation/Recognition #2


Board of Commissioners Commissioner David Barlow


Recognition of Carter and Olivia, the founders of One More Generation.


One More Generation (OMG) was founded by two elementary students in Fayetteville, Georgia.  The founders, Carter and Olivia, are 


extremely passionate about animals and conservation.  They have been adopting Cheetahs in South Africa over the past few years, and 


when they heard that Cheetahs, along with many other species are close to extinction, they had to act. 


 


Olivia and Carter stated their own nonprofit in an effort to help kids and adults learn about endangered species with a goal of saving the 


animals for at least One More Generation. 


 


Carter and Olivia have worked to save animals that were endangered during the gulf oil spill in 2010.  Through their efforts, they have 


expanded their scope in order to educate people on environmental concerns with a focus on plastic pollution.  In 2011, One More 


Generation launched the Plastic Awareness Coalition.  The organization has also developed Plastic Awareness Week curriculum. 


 


Carter and Olivia continue to speak to various organizations, churches, schools, and other gatherings throughout the United States and 


even in South Africa.  


Recognition of Carter and Olivia, the founders of One More Generation.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionTuesday, March 11, 2014







Our Founders


About Our Founders: One More Generation (OMG) was founded by two 


elementary students here in Fayetteville, GA. The founders are Carter (now 11.5) 


and his Sister Olivia (now 10), who are both extremely passionate about animals 


and conservation.  They have been adopting Cheetahs in South Africa over the 


past few years and when they heard that Cheetahs, along with so many other 


species were close to extinction, they knew they had to act.


<!--[if !vml]--><!--[endif]-->Olivia and Carter started 


their own nonprofit in an effort to help educate kids and 


Please help us make a difference


One More Generation is Raising Funds 


While Saving The 


10 Ways To Reduce Plastic Use At 


Home


Sign up to receive useful tips on reducing your 


plastic consumption at 


Email Address


First Name


Last Name


* = required field


Telephone: 877-OMG-THANKS (877-664-8426)


Home About OMG Support OMG Petitions Video Plastic Awareness Educational Programs


Page 1 of 7OMG Founders | Carter Ries | Olivia Ries | | One More Generation


3/15/2014http://onemoregeneration.org/our-founders/







adults about the plight of endangered species so they can 


save them for at least One More Generation… and 


beyond. One More Generation (OMG) was formed in late 


2009 and officially filed with the state of GA as a nonprofit in January of 2010. 


OMG was granted their 501(c)(3) status by the IRS in May of 2010. 


<!--[if !vml]--><!--[endif]-->Shortly after starting their organization the Gulf oil 


spill happened (April 2010). Olivia and her brother came home from school and 


watched with their parents the first images of sea birds and sea turtles being 


pulled out of the Gulf caked in oil.  Olivia immediately started to cry and she 


looked at her parents and asked, “What are we going to do about this problem?”


So they picked up the phone and contacted the four 


largest agencies involved with the animal rescue 


efforts.  Each of the agencies gave them a list of badly 


needed animal rescue supplies.  The two kids spent 


the next four months going from church to church, 


and from school to school giving presentations and 


asking for help collecting the supplies.


<!--[if !vml]--><!--[endif]-->Then in late August of that year (on Olivia’s eighth 


birthday) the two kids headed to the Gulf to deliver the supplies.  They spent 5-


daysin the region and worked with the Marine Mammal & Sea Turtle Rescue 


Center who gladly accepted the collected supplies.  The center had 146 sea turtles, 


several sharks and even a dolphin, all of which needed their care.  The kids had a 


blast working at the center and meeting all the dedicated staff and volunteers 


who worked so hard to save these animals.


On the last day of their trip, a veterinarian from CA 


(who was volunteering her time and helping out at 


the center) approached the kids and commended 


them for their hard work and passion.  We were all so 


proud of the work the kids had done and none of us 


could have imagined anything else we could have 


done to help these animals.


Just then the veterinarian asked the kids what they were doing about the 


environment.  Perplexed we all looked at her like she was from Mars.  Weren’t we 


doing enough, why should we be focusing on the environment?  After all, our 


organization was about trying to save endangered species.  Helping out during 


OMG Video


Endangered Animals 


Species 


1moregeneration


We are a nonprofit organization 


preservation of endangered species. Our goal is to 


help ALL 


Generation...and beyond. Below, you'll 


infor


how we are working 


Tags


11Alive 


Planet


Olivia


International Trade in Endangered Species


Bruce Means


Program
Species
GAFernbank 


Making 


Council


Founders
Trivia
Generation


Awareness


Week
Trash


Page 2 of 7OMG Founders | Carter Ries | Olivia Ries | | One More Generation


3/15/2014http://onemoregeneration.org/our-founders/







the oil spill was kind of a bonus thing we were doing.  Weren’t we doing enough 


we asked?


Well, she said, not really.  With open mouths we all stood there confused.  She 


continued on by explaining that it takes 6-8 weeks torehab these animals with all 


the supplies we brought.  She then asked us “Where 


do you want me to put the animals when they are all 


better?” Not understanding her question, we all 


answered “why back in the ocean of course.  After all, 


I am sure the oil will be cleaned up someday and 


surely there are other parts of the ocean which are oil 


free that you could bring the sea turtles to we explained”.


She looked at us with saddened eyes and told us that Oil was not the problem, 


Plastic was the problem.  Confused we all asked how plastic could be the 


problem.  That is when she told us about plastic pollution.  In all sincerity, that 


was the first time any of us had ever heard the term Plastic Pollution.  She 


continued on explaining how bad plastic pollution was in our oceans and told us 


that many of the rescued sea turtles and sea birds would ultimately die from 


entanglement or from ingesting plastic.


Needless to say, as we left the Gulf region, we were all 


a bit down and even frustrated that we had not done 


all we could have done tohelp these poor animals.  


After all, the Dr. was right.  You simply cannot 


attempt to save animals without adding in an 


environmental component to your program.


<!--[if !vml]--><!--[endif]-->So once we returned, we spent the next 5-months 


educating ourselves about the issue of Plastic Pollution.  We looked at the various 


causes and picked the low hanging fruit, which happened to be single use plastic 


bags.  We learned that several communities and even entire countries had already 


taken steps to cut down the amount of bags they use.  We quickly decided we too 


would look at targeting plastic bags.  As we started to request meetings with local 


city officials, it was evident that despite our sincere plans to want to be the 


solution, no one was taking us serious.  After all, who had ever heard of One More 


Generation?


<!--[if !vml]--><!--[endif]--><!--[if !vml]--><!--[endif]-->So in Feb of 2011, on 


Carter’s 10 birthday, we launched our Plastic Awareness Coalition and we 


set out to get like minded localorganizations to sign 


th


DayRhino


Plastic Bags


Fining


Kids


Page 3 of 7OMG Founders | Carter Ries | Olivia Ries | | One More Generation


3/15/2014http://onemoregeneration.org/our-founders/







on with us so we would have enough clout to request 


meetings with local officials without being looked at 


as a mere kids group.  Then, realizing that the wheels 


of change within the political arena turned slow, 


Carter and Olivia asked if we could somehow reach 


out to kids to share with them all that we had 


learned.  After all, if we all care so much after 


learning about the problem, surely their peers would do the same.


So in March of 2010, we developed our Plastic Awareness Week curriculum.  


We partnered with several teachers who helped us write the curriculum and then 


we set out to test the program in Olivia and Carter’s school.  The school was kind 


enough to let us use them, as our testing grounds and the program was a huge 


success.  All the kids and their families got involved and everyone learned a ton of 


information about the issue and we even included helpful and easy ways each 


student and their families could make subtle changes in their daily lives, which 


would make a huge impact on the environment.


<!--[if !vml]--><!--[endif]-->Since launching 


our school program, Olivia and Carter have 


hosted the program to various schools and 


organizations across the country.  Their goal 


is to get the Plastic Awareness Week 


curriculum in every elementary school in the 


US.  The program provides each student with 


their very own stainless steel water bottle 


and a cloth reusable bag, which they get to decorate.  We also bought the movie 


rights to an award-winning documentary about plastic which each school gets a 


copy of.  We also provide several age appropriate environmental books to each 


classroom in the school and much more.


The program is extremely successful and we are now in the process of having the 


curriculum set to match national standards for science as well as other areas.  We 


are also working with several organizations in an attempt to have100% of the 


funding provided for schools so that the 


entire program is free.


<!--[if !vml]--><!--[endif]-->Our coalition 


is also in full swing and we now have over 


70 local, national and even international 


organizations on board.


Page 4 of 7OMG Founders | Carter Ries | Olivia Ries | | One More Generation


3/15/2014http://onemoregeneration.org/our-founders/







<!--[if !vml]--><!--[endif]-->Carter and Olivia continue to speak to various 


organizations, churches, schools etc. across the country and even made a trip to 


South Africa last December where they worked with such well known 


organizations as IFAW (International Fund for Animal Welfare), CLAW 


(Community Lead Animal Welfare), the Ann Van Dyk Cheetah Center and with 


the folks at Jane Goodall’s Roots and Shoots SA.


While in Cape Town, the kids added a new Board 


Member to One More Generation ‘Robyn Cant-


Haylett who is a local girl that is just as passionate 


about saving animals and cleaning up the 


environment as they are.  Robyn will be working with 


the folks at the Two Oceans Aquarium in Cape Town 


and she is in the process of coordinating several 


educational programs designed to educate kids about 


Plastic Pollution.


Carter and Olivia are also working with two national 


retailers in an attempt to help them remove plastic 


bags from their offering.  We are very excited about the opportunity and hope we 


can get more retailers to voluntarily offer alternatives to their customers.


We are pleased to announce that the 5-Gyres Institute has also joined their 


Plastic Awareness Coalition and we are now working together on ways we can 


help each other spread the word and help kids (and their families) learn how they 


too can be ‘The Solution to Plastic Pollution’.


If you would like to learn more about the various initiatives Olivia and Carter are 


involved with, or if you would like to have them come and speak at your next 


event, please feel free to send them an email.  


Schools and parents interested in having the 


Plastic Awareness Week program at their 


school can also send them an email and they will 


gladly get back with you.  You can also help 


support their organization on line by clicking the 


Donate button on any of the pages on their site.


<!--[if !vml]--><!--[endif]-->One of their latest ventures involves organically 


grown produce.  After visiting so many animal rescue facilities, zoos and 


aquariums, Olivia noticed that all these facilities desperately need healthy food 


options for their animal residence.  As she learned more, she realized that most 


facilities need to rely on food donations from various sources and that sometimes 


Page 5 of 7OMG Founders | Carter Ries | Olivia Ries | | One More Generation


3/15/2014http://onemoregeneration.org/our-founders/







the food donated was old and or already expired.  She also heard about how 


expensive it is to get good healthy produce.


<!--[if !vml]--><!--[endif]-->Armed with their new found 


knowledge, Olivia and Carter decide to start a new division 


within their organization which would be dedicated to 


growing organically grown produce which they could donate 


to animal facilities everywhere.


The new division is called GreenWell and they have already 


produced their first crops, which are being donated to a local 


animal rescue program in their hometown.  They already have order requests 


from their local zoo and aquarium and they plan to expand their production 


capabilities 4-fold later this year.


Their goal is to grow ample food supplies for their customer base and to also 


partner with the local food banks and senior homes that could receive some of 


their crops as well.


Also, since Olivia and Carter started OMG in an 


effort to save endangered species the two are 


still very active doing just that.  After returning 


from South Africa, where the kids learned first 


hand about the escalation of poaching of 


Rhinos for their horns, they decided they wanted to try and make a difference for 


Rhinos.  The first thing they did was to partner with two amazing South African 


organizations.  The first organization is called SPOTS (Strategic Protection 


Of Threatened Species) and the second is called Rhino SA (South Africa). 


 Both organizations have been fighting to save Rhinos for years now through 


direct protection programs and through education.


Then they decided to launch an international Rhino Letter 


Writing Campaign which was designed to 


offer concerned citizens around the world a way to learn more 


about the issue and to help them understand that each one of 


us is responsible for what happens to all God’s creatures.  The campaign asks 


people all over the world to send OMG letters addressed to South African 


President Jacob Zuma, asking him to get serious about saving the species before 


it is too late.  The goal with the campaign was to collect at leats 1,000 letters and 


then to return to South Africa where they will hand deliver all thecollected letters 


Page 6 of 7OMG Founders | Carter Ries | Olivia Ries | | One More Generation


3/15/2014http://onemoregeneration.org/our-founders/







© 2009-2013 One More Generation


Powered by WordPress. Built on the Thematic Theme Framework.


Child theme and site implementation by Websuasion. 


to President Zuma to show him that the whole world is begging him to 


save the species before they become extinct.


So far we have collected over 2,000 letters from all over the world and thanks to 


the hard work of the folks at Rhino SA, we will soon be adding over 1,000 more 


letters from students in schools all across South Africa.  You can learn more 


about the campaign at the following link:


Dear President Zuma,


We hope you like all the work our young founders are doing and that you too are 


inspired by their work.  If you would like to learn more or to book Carter and 


Olivia and special guests at your next function, please give us a call at 678-491-


6222 or send us an email at info@onemoregeneration.org


Thanks in advance for your interest in our organization and we hope to hear from 


you soon.


Best regards from the entire OMG team 


2 Trackbacks


1. By Other Kids… « Hudson Valley Homeschool Roots & Shoots on March 29, 


2011 at 1:12 PM


2. By Ian Somerhalder | Vampire Diaries | OMG Founders | 9/10/11 | One More 


Generation on August 13, 2011 at 7:55 PM


Page 7 of 7OMG Founders | Carter Ries | Olivia Ries | | One More Generation


3/15/2014http://onemoregeneration.org/our-founders/





		Commissioners- One More Generation Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- One More Generation Backup

		Commissioners- One More Generation Backup

		http___onemoregeneration












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Presentation/Recognition #5


Board of Commissioners Commissioner David Barlow


Recognition of Nina Madrid, Business Systems Administrator, and Dianne Crownover, Permits Technician, for being nominated to 


receive the Team Player Award.


Commissioner David Barlow introduced the team player award for Fayette County employees in December 2013.  The Team Player 


Award is designed to motivate, recognize, and reward outstanding performance and dedicated service as a representative of Fayette 


County.  Nominees are submitted by any Department Head of Fayette County at the consent of the employee's direct Department Head. 


All nominees should demonstrate above average performance in their positions and above average behavior and performance in the 


following areas: 


 


• Constantly evaluating what his/her department is trying to achieve 


• Flexible-can change course as the situation dictates 


• Understands that we all make mistakes and works together to correct mistakes rather than expose them 


• Understands that not all goals will be accomplished and can prioritize work efforts to accomplish as many achievable goals as possible 


• Maintains positive attitude, REGARDLESS 


• A consistent spirit of teamwork and cooperation modeled by respectful treatment of others 


• Willingness to make commitments and keep promises in pursuit of team goals 


• Demonstrates interest and concern for other team members and team objectives


Recognition of Nina Madrid, Business Systems Administrator, and Dianne Crownover, Permits Technician, for being nominated to 


receive the Team Player Award.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


The Team Player Award is an initiative started and maintained by Commissioner David Barlow.  


Presentation/RecognitionMarch 27, 2014












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Presentation/Recognition #6


Finance Mary S Parrott


Presentation by Fayette County's auditing firm, Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC., of the results of the Fiscal Year 2013 annual audit.


Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC has completed the independent audit of the County's accounting records for the 2013 fiscal year.  


The firm will be presenting the results of the audit to the Board of Commissioners. 


This is a presentation only.  No Board action is requested.


Not Applicable.


Yes Annually


Yes Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, March 27, 2014







Presented by:


Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC


William Sammons, CPA, CIA


Gregory Chapman, CPA, CIA, CGAP







• Audit Reports


• Required Communications


• Financial Statement Highlights







• Independent Auditors’ Report on the County’s 
Financial Statements


• Independent Auditors’ Report on the Water 
System’s Financial Statements


• Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards 







• Report on Compliance with requirements of 


OMB Circular A-133


• Agreed Upon Procedures Report On The 


County’s Compliance With The Financial 


Assurance Provisions Of The Municipal Solid 


Waste Landfill Criteria Under Subtitle D Of 


The Resource Conservation Recovery Act







• Our responsibility under GAAS


• Independence


• Significant Accounting Policies


• Significant Accounting Estimates


• Significant Audit Adjustment







2013 2012 2011 2010


Total Assets $364,922 $380,775 $374,132 $387,927


Total Liabilities $105,743 $115,116 $111,365 $124,062


Total Net Position $259,179 $265,658 $262,767 $263,866


 $-


 $50,000


 $100,000


 $150,000


 $200,000


 $250,000


 $300,000


 $350,000


 $400,000


 $450,000







2013 2012 2011 2010


Capital Assets $147,788 $143,157 $133,114 $107,757


Restricted $64,993 $73,502 $94,071 $87,356


Unrestricted $46,399 $49,610 $35,583 $68,752


 $-


 $20,000


 $40,000


 $60,000


 $80,000


 $100,000


 $120,000


 $140,000


 $160,000







2013 2012 2011 2010


Revenues $73,416 $75,717 $83,151 $90,649


Expenses $80,506 $81,707 $84,249 $90,926


 $-


 $10,000


 $20,000


 $30,000


 $40,000


 $50,000


 $60,000


 $70,000


 $80,000


 $90,000


 $100,000







2013 2012 2011 2010


Program $24,967 $24,619 $29,112 $23,403


Property Taxes $34,854 $36,089 $37,981 $39,053


SPLOST $- $- $161 $12,255


Sales taxes $9,968 $10,011 $9,572 $9,635


Other $3,627 $4,997 $6,325 $6,303


 $-


 $5,000


 $10,000


 $15,000


 $20,000


 $25,000


 $30,000


 $35,000


 $40,000


 $45,000







2013 2012 2011 2010


General Govt $8,231 $13,747 $13,911 $17,477


Judicial $6,530 $5,571 $5,151 $5,607


Public Safety $36,652 $35,487 $34,914 $33,801


Public Works $8,203 $5,110 $10,041 $13,183


Water System $13,857 $14,433 $13,336 $13,083


Other $7,032 $7,360 $6,896 $7,773


 $-


 $5,000


 $10,000


 $15,000


 $20,000


 $25,000


 $30,000


 $35,000


 $40,000







Thank you for the opportunity


To provide the County with 


our services. 


QUESTIONS?





		Finance- Annual Audit FY2013 Agenda Request File

		Finance- Annual Audit FY2013 Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Presentation/Recognition #7


Finance County Administrator Steve Rapson


Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Distinguished Budget Award for Fayette County's annual budget document 


for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2014.


This is the 17th consecutive year Fayette County has received this award from GFOA. To qualify for the budget award, Fayette County 


had to satisfy nationally recognized guidelines for effective budget presentation. The guidelines are designed to assess how well Fayette 


County's budget document serves as a policy document, as a financial plan, as an operations guide, and as a communications device.  


 


GFOA is a  prestigious nonprofit professional association serving over 17,600 government professionals throughout North America.  It is 


considered the gatekeeper for monitoring and recommending improvements to government financial reporting and consistently influences 


changes in reporting standards that "raise the bar" for government entities.  


 


Presentation of the Government Finance Officers Association Distinguished Budget Award for Fayette County's annual budget document 


for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2014.


Not Applicable.


Yes Last year


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Only twelve (12) of Georgia's 159 counties, received the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award.  Fayette County is one of the twelve 


counties that have earned the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, and therefore is among the 7.5% of all Georgia's counties to be 


honored with this award.


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, March 27, 2014







Counties in Georgia that received the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award 12


Total number of Counties in Georgia 159


Percentage of Counties in Georgia that received the award 7.5%

























		Finance- Budget Award Agenda Request File

		Finance- Budget Award Backup

		Budget Award list

		2014 Budget Award Back-Up












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Presentation/Recognition #4


Fire and Emergency Services Fire Chief David J. Scarbrough


Recognition of Mr. Brad Boemanns as the 2014 Fayette County Firefighter of the Year.


Firefighter Brad Boemanns joined the Fire Department in 2008.  He is described as a hard worker and very dedicated to the department.  


Brad has always displayed many heroic qualities, such as humility, respect, and kindness.  In 2010, while bravely trying to save a Fayette 


County home that was engulfed in fire, he was seriously injured in the line of duty, suffering severe burns to his back, neck, and ears.  He 


underwent several very painful skin grafts, some of which did not take, and even suffered a pulmonary embolism as well as the obvious 


emotional turmoil that results from such a traumatic experience.  Despite all of this, Brad stuck to his rehabilitation schedule and worked 


hard all in an effort to return to work.  Throughout this entire experience, Brad has maintained a positive outlook, and this year he 


returned to work where he continues to display the same heroic qualities he demonstrated when he first started working here. 


 


Brad was assigned to Headquarters during his light duty stint and quickly became an asset to logistics during a transitional period.  He is 


highly regarded by Headquarters staff and online personnel.   


 


On his selection as Firefighter of the Year, Battalion Chief Woods stated that "Brad is another example of a Fayette County Firefighter 


that has persevered through many obstacles and a life threatening injury to return to work and serve his community".


Recognition of Mr. Brad Boemanns as the 2014 Fayette County Firefighter of the Year.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


The Firefighter of the Year is based on a Fiscal Year basis (July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2014).


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, March 27, 2014












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Consent Agenda #9


Fire and Emergency Services Fire Chief David J. Scarbrough


Approval of staff's request to obtain an enclosed trailer from District 4 Public Health for the storage and transportation of emergency 


shelter supplies for the Fayette County Fire and EMS Department.


The Department of Fire and Emergency Services is requesting the approval for acceptance of an enclosed trailer from District 4 Public 


Health.  This trailer will be on loan to Fire and Emergency Services at no cost, and it will be stocked by District 4 Public Health with 


equipment that would be utilized to establish a shelter during disaster situations. 


 


The trailer will contain cots, a generator, blankets, lights, as well as other emergency supplies.  The acquisition of this trailer will allow the 


Fire and Emergency Services to have shelter resources that can be easily and quickly transported to the designated location for shelter 


activities.   


 


District 4 Public Health will maintain ownership and will provide for the maintenance and insurance of the unit.  Fayette County will 


provide a secure location for storage, basic non-mechanical maintenance, and provide a vehicle to tow the unit to any site in District 4 


should deployment be required.


Approval of staff's request to obtain an enclosed trailer from District 4 Public Health for the storage and transportation of emergency 


shelter supplies for the Fayette County Fire and EMS Department.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This request serves as an example of the cooperation between the Fire and Emergency Services Department and District 4 Public Health 


for the safety and provision of Fayette County's citizens.


ConsentThursday, March 27, 2014









		Fire and EMS- Enclosed Trailer Agenda Request File

		Fire and EMS- Enclosed Trailer Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Consent Agenda #8


Human Resources Lewis Patterson


Approval of staff's recommendation to implement the proposed grade changes and resulting salary adjustments for the Water Production 


Division of the Fayette County Water System, as prepared by The Carl Vinson Institute of Government and the University of Georgia.


The Fayette County Water System and the County have taken several steps to insure the production of safe drinking water for it's 


citizens.  A new director has been hired and a new engineer of record.  Aggressive steps have been taken to correct infrastructure 


deficiencies and to properly train staff. In discussions with the Environmental Protection Division (EPD), employee compensation was 


identified as an issue that needed to be addressed.  As a result, The Carl Vinson Institute of Government at The University of Georgia 


(CVIOG) was engaged to conduct a compensation and classification study within the water production division which encompasses all 


positions assigned to the two water treatment plants.   


 


The purpose of the study was to validate that job descriptions are current and in compliance with state and federal requirements as well 


as industry best practices.  This compensation element, once implemented, will insure that the County is able to attract and retain the 


best qualified employees who are directly responsible for producing the quality of water that Fayette County citizens expect.   


 


Alex Daman from the CVIOG will be present to present an overview of the review process and to answer any questions regarding the 


implementation proposal.    


Approval of staff's recommendation to implement the proposed grade changes and resulting salary adjustments for the Water Production 


Division of the Fayette County Water System, as prepared by The Carl Vinson Institute of Government and the University of Georgia.


The cost to implement the salary adjustment including benefits is $21,630.78.  Cost savings from personnel changes that have been 


implemented in the last six months within the Water System will allow this to be fully funded with no negative impact on the FY14 budget.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, March 27, 2014







 
 


 
 
 
 
 


  
 
 
 
 
 


FINAL REPORT: 
 


REVIEW AND UPDATE OF THE 
 


CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION 
 


PLAN FOR THE FAYETTE 
 


COUNTY WATER SYSTEM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


March 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Human Resource Management Unit 


Governmental Services and Research Division 
Vinson Institute of Government 


University of Georgia 
Athens, Georgia  30602 







 
 


Table of Contents 
 
 


Introduction  .....................................................................................................................................1                


The Classification Plan   ..................................................................................................................3                


The Compensation Plan .................................................................................................................. 4                


Cost of Implementation  ...................................................................................................................8             


 


Appendix A:   Position/Grade Analysis by Department 
Appendix B:   Position/Grade Analysis by Grade 
Appendix C:   Georgia DCA Salary Survey Summary 
Appendix D:   Water Salary Survey Summary 
Appendix E:   Bureau of Labor Statistics Salary Survey Summary 







1 


Introduction   


At the request of Fayette County, the Governmental Services and Research Division of the 


Carl Vinson Institute of Government at the University of Georgia entered into a contract with the 


government for the development of a job classification and compensation plan for positions 


within their Water System. 


The objectives of the study included: 


1. Develop updated job descriptions for all positions at the water treatment plants; 
 
2. Review and upgrade the current classification system and pay plan for all employees 


at the water treatment plants; 
 
3. Collect wage survey data and produce an updated pay plan based on job  
 analysis, job evaluation and wage survey data. 


 
The process used to collect the necessary data and develop the updated classification and 


compensation plan consisted of several steps or phases.  The first step involved the distribution 


of a position questionnaire to all Water System employees.  The questionnaire covered major 


aspects of the employee's position as well as the work environment of the position.  After 


reviewing the information on the position questionnaires, Institute staff interviewed employees 


either individually or in small groups. 


The next phase in the work involved evaluating each position.  In order to provide a 


reliable set of ratings, all position description ratings were conducted by Institute staff.  Institute 


staff evaluated position descriptions utilizing the Factor Evaluation System (FES).  An 


explanation of the FES system follows in another section of the report.   


 The subsequent phase in the work involved collecting salary survey information 


specifically for this project.  Salary survey summary results for select local governments in the 


Atlanta, Georgia metropolitan area are presented in Appendix C.  These results were derived 







2 


from the Georgia Department of Community Affairs wage and salary database.  The Department 


of Community Affairs (DCA) administers an annual wage and salary survey to Georgia's local 


governments.  The survey collects a variety of compensation data for over 160 different local 


government jobs. 


The Vinson Institute utilized customized salary survey data collected from a previous 


study for this project.  Summary results of the surveys are presented in Appendix D.  The 


summarized results presented in Appendix D features compensation data for water related 


occupations.  The salary data was collected from Water Authorities and Water & Sewage 


Authorities in the Central Georgia Area.  Table I displays the responding organizations for 


Appendix D.  


Salary survey summary results presented in Appendix E were derived from the Bureau of 


Labor Statistics Metropolitan and Nonmetropolitan Area Occupational Employment and Wage 


Estimates.  The Bureau of Labor Statistics conducts a semi-annual mail survey designed to 


produce estimates of employment and wages for specific occupations by geographic area.  The 


summarized results presented in Appendix F are calculated with data collected from employers in 


all industry sectors for the Atlanta-Sandy Springs-Marietta, GA metropolitan area.  Counties 


included within this metropolitan area are displayed in Appendix E. 


 Even after completion of these phases, it may be necessary to reevaluate positions 


based on a change in duties or on a refocused job description.  It is the intention of Institute staff 


to provide a reasonable level of technical assistance in this process. 


 







3 


Table I 


Water Salary Survey Summary 


Fayette County Personnel Project 


Salary Survey Respondents 


 
 


Butts County Water & Sewage Authority 
 


Clayton County Water Authority 
 


Macon Water Authority 
 







4 


The Classification Plan 
 


The system used to classify the jobs in Fayette County’s Water System is an adapted 


version of the Factor Evaluation System (FES).  FES was developed by the Civil Service 


Commission (now the Office of Personnel Management) of the federal government and is 


considered to be a state-of-the-art system in human resource management. 


FES is a point-factor-comparison job evaluation system.  Point-factor systems are the 


most commonly used job evaluation approach for public and private sector organizations in the 


United States and Europe. There are three common features in point-factor systems: (1) 


compensable factors, with (2) factor degrees numerically scaled, and (3) weights reflecting the 


relative importance of each factor.  


The nine compensable factors that FES uses for the evaluation of jobs are:  Knowledge 


Required by the Position, Supervisory Controls, Guidelines, Complexity, Scope and Effect, 


Personal Contacts, Purpose of Contacts, Physical Demands, and Work Environment.  In order to 


adapt it to this setting, a tenth compensable factor covering supervisory responsibility was added 


by Institute staff.  The factors are weighted (i.e., Knowledge Required by the Position "counts 


more" than Physical Demands).  Each factor has several levels, and each level is assigned a 


specified number of points.  The combined score on all the factors determines the total number of 


points for each position and its assignment to a grade in the classification plan.  Appendix A 


depicts the grade level assigned all positions.  The assigned grade levels reflect a combination of 


data generated by FES, salary survey data, and a review of organizational relationships within the 


county. 


 







5 


The Compensation Plan 
 


The compensation plan developed for Fayette County’s Water System is based on an 


internal value system reflected in the classification plan and on a salary survey of comparable 


organizations to help assure an externally equitable and competitive pay system. 


The pay plan consists of thirty grades (grades 1-30).  Table III (see page 7) displays the 


current salary scale adopted by Fayette County for FY 2013.  The salary scale on Table III 


(utilizing updated classifications for Water System positions) is at approximately the third 


quartile for positions in select Water Authorities and Water & Sewage Authorities (see Appendix 


D) and at approximately the 90th percentile for positions in comparable local governments (see 


Appendix C).  This compensation plan represents a lead (pay above market rate) pay-level policy. 


 A lead pay-level policy maximizes the ability of an organization to attract and retain quality 


employees and minimize employee dissatisfaction with pay. 


Table II illustrates the probable effects of this pay-level policy. 


Table II: Probable Relationships between Pay Policies and Compensation Objectives 


 


 
Compensation Objectives 


Policy Ability to 


Attract 


Ability to 


Retain 


Contain 


Labor Costs 


Reduce Pay 


Dissatisfaction 


Increase 


Productivity 


Lead (Pay above 


market) 
+ + - + ? 


Source: Milkovich, George T, and Jerry M. Newman., 2005.  Compensation.  McGraw-Hill.  p. 205. 


  


The salary range for each grade is fifty percent.  The range is deliberately broad so that 


problems associated with employees reaching the top of their pay range will be minimized.  


Further, it is recommended that once employees reach the maximum of their assigned pay range, 


merit increases continue to be earned in a lump sum or bonus fashion.  This will help alleviate 







6 


retention and motivation problems associated with employees who have "topped out" of their pay 


range.   


In order to keep the proposed salary table current, an annual market adjustment should be 


considered.  This adjustment should be applied as an increase to the salary schedule and as a 


general percentage salary increase for all employees when market conditions dictate.  This 


market adjustment should be made in addition to employee performance raises.  Thus, Fayette 


County may budget for two annual personnel cost adjustments:  1) an across-the-board increase 


which would raise every employee’s salary and every pay range equally when market conditions 


dictate, and 2) annual performance increases linked to employee service and/or performance. 







7 


 
 


Table III 
Current Fayette County Salary Scale for FY 2013 


Fayette County Personnel Project 
 


 


Grade A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O P  Q R 


1 19,528.67 20,016.89 20,517.31 21,030.24 21,556.00 22,094.90 22,647.27 23,213.45 23,793.79 24,388.63 24,998.35 25,623.31 26,263.89 26,920.49 27,593.50 28,283.34 28,990.42 29,715.18 


2 20,517.31 21,030.24 21,556.00 22,094.90 22,647.27 23,213.45 23,793.79 24,388.63 24,998.35 25,623.31 26,263.89 26,920.49 27,593.50 28,283.34 28,990.42 29,715.18 30,458.06 31,219.51 


3 21,556.00 22,094.90 22,647.27 23,213.45 23,793.79 24,388.63 24,998.35 25,623.31 26,263.89 26,920.49 27,593.50 28,283.34 28,990.42 29,715.18 30,458.06 31,219.51 32,000.00 32,800.00 


4 22,647.27 23,213.45 23,793.79 24,388.63 24,998.35 25,623.31 26,263.89 26,920.49 27,593.50 28,283.34 28,990.42 29,715.18 30,458.06 31,219.51 32,000.00 32,800.00 33,620.00 34,460.50 


5 23,793.79 24,388.63 24,998.35 25,623.31 26,263.89 26,920.49 27,593.50 28,283.34 28,990.42 29,715.18 30,458.06 31,219.51 32,000.00 32,800.00 33,620.00 34,460.50 35,322.01 36,205.06 


6 24,998.35 25,623.31 26,263.89 26,920.49 27,593.50 28,283.34 28,990.42 29,715.18 30,458.06 31,219.51 32,000.00 32,800.00 33,620.00 34,460.50 35,322.01 36,205.06 37,110.19 38,037.94 


7 26,263.89 26,920.49 27,593.50 28,283.34 28,990.42 29,715.18 30,458.06 31,219.51 32,000.00 32,800.00 33,620.00 34,460.50 35,322.01 36,205.06 37,110.19 38,037.94 38,988.89 39,963.62 


8 27,593.50 28,283.34 28,990.42 29,715.18 30,458.06 31,219.51 32,000.00 32,800.00 33,620.00 34,460.50 35,322.01 36,205.06 37,110.19 38,037.94 38,988.89 39,963.62 40,962.71 41,986.77 


9 28,990.42 29,715.18 30,458.06 31,219.51 32,000.00 32,800.00 33,620.00 34,460.50 35,322.01 36,205.06 37,110.19 38,037.94 38,988.89 39,963.62 40,962.71 41,986.77 43,036.44 44,112.35 


10 30,458.06 31,219.51 32,000.00 32,800.00 33,620.00 34,460.50 35,322.01 36,205.06 37,110.19 38,037.94 38,988.89 39,963.62 40,962.71 41,986.77 43,036.44 44,112.35 45,215.16 46,345.54 


11 32,000.00 32,800.00 33,620.00 34,460.50 35,322.01 36,205.06 37,110.19 38,037.94 38,988.89 39,963.62 40,962.71 41,986.77 43,036.44 44,112.35 45,215.16 46,345.54 47,504.18 48,691.78 


12 33,620.00 34,460.50 35,322.01 36,205.06 37,110.19 38,037.94 38,988.89 39,963.62 40,962.71 41,986.77 43,036.44 44,112.35 45,215.16 46,345.54 47,504.18 48,691.78 49,909.08 51,156.81 


13 35,322.01 36,205.06 37,110.19 38,037.94 38,988.89 39,963.62 40,962.71 41,986.77 43,036.44 44,112.35 45,215.16 46,345.54 47,504.18 48,691.78 49,909.08 51,156.81 52,435.73 53,746.62 


14 37,110.19 38,037.94 38,988.89 39,963.62 40,962.71 41,986.77 43,036.44 44,112.35 45,215.16 46,345.54 47,504.18 48,691.78 49,909.08 51,156.81 52,435.73 53,746.62 55,090.28 56,467.54 


15 38,988.89 39,963.62 40,962.71 41,986.77 43,036.44 44,112.35 45,215.16 46,345.54 47,504.18 48,691.78 49,909.08 51,156.81 52,435.73 53,746.62 55,090.28 56,467.54 57,879.23 59,326.21 


16 40,962.71 41,986.77 43,036.44 44,112.35 45,215.16 46,345.54 47,504.18 48,691.78 49,909.08 51,156.81 52,435.73 53,746.62 55,090.28 56,467.54 57,879.23 59,326.21 60,809.37 62,329.60 


17 43,036.44 44,112.35 45,215.16 46,345.54 47,504.18 48,691.78 49,909.08 51,156.81 52,435.73 53,746.62 55,090.28 56,467.54 57,879.23 59,326.21 60,809.37 62,329.60 63,887.84 65,485.04 


18 45,215.16 46,345.54 47,504.18 48,691.78 49,909.08 51,156.81 52,435.73 53,746.62 55,090.28 56,467.54 57,879.23 59,326.21 60,809.37 62,329.60 63,887.84 65,485.04 67,122.16 68,800.22 


19 47,504.18 48,691.78 49,909.08 51,156.81 52,435.73 53,746.62 55,090.28 56,467.54 57,879.23 59,326.21 60,809.37 62,329.60 63,887.84 65,485.04 67,122.16 68,800.22 70,520.22 72,283.23 


20 49,909.08 51,156.81 52,435.73 53,746.62 55,090.28 56,467.54 57,879.23 59,326.21 60,809.37 62,329.60 63,887.84 65,485.04 67,122.16 68,800.22 70,520.22 72,283.23 74,090.31 75,942.57 


21 55,090.28 56,467.54 57,879.23 59,326.21 60,809.37 62,329.60 63,887.84 65,485.04 67,122.16 68,800.22 70,520.22 72,283.23 74,090.31 75,942.57 77,841.13 79,787.16 81,781.84 83,826.38 


22 60,809.37 62,329.60 63,887.84 65,485.04 67,122.16 68,800.22 70,520.22 72,283.23 74,090.31 75,942.57 77,841.13 79,787.16 81,781.84 83,826.38 85,922.04 88,070.09 90,271.85 92,528.64 


23 67,122.16 68,800.22 70,520.22 72,283.23 74,090.31 75,942.57 77,841.13 79,787.16 81,781.84 83,826.38 85,922.04 88,070.09 90,271.85 92,528.64 94,841.86 97,212.90 99,643.23 102,134.31 


24 74,090.31 75,942.57 77,841.13 79,787.16 81,781.84 83,826.38 85,922.04 88,070.09 90,271.85 92,528.64 94,841.86 97,212.90 99,643.23 102,134.31 104,687.67 107,304.86 109,987.48 112,737.17 


25 81,781.84 83,826.38 85,922.04 88,070.09 90,271.85 92,528.64 94,841.86 97,212.90 99,643.23 102,134.31 104,687.67 107,304.86 109,987.48 112,737.17 115,555.59 118,444.48 121,405.60 124,440.74 


26 90,271.85 92,528.64 94,841.86 97,212.90 99,643.23 102,134.31 104,687.67 107,304.86 109,987.48 112,737.17 115,555.59 118,444.48 121,405.60 124,440.74 127,551.76 130,740.55 134,009.06 137,359.29 


27 99,643.23 102,134.31 104,687.67 107,304.86 109,987.48 112,737.17 115,555.59 118,444.48 121,405.60 124,440.74 127,551.76 130,740.55 134,009.06 137,359.29 140,793.27 144,313.10 147,920.93 151,618.95 


28 109,987.48 112,737.17 115,555.59 118,444.48 121,405.60 124,440.74 127,551.75 130,740.55 134,009.06 137,359.29 140,793.27 144,313.10 147,920.93 151,618.95 155,409.43 159,294.66 163,277.03 167,358.96 


29 121,405.60 124,440.74 127,551.75 130,740.55 134,009.06 137,359.29 140,793.27 144,313.10 147,920.93 151,618.95 155,409.43 159,294.66 163,277.03 167,358.96 171,542.93 175,831.50 180,227.29 184,732.97 


30 134,009.06 137,359.29 140,793.27 144,313.10 147,920.93 151,618.95 155,409.43 159,294.66 163,277.03 167,358.96 171,542.93 175,831.50 180,227.29 184,732.97 189,351.30 194,085.08 198,937.21 203,910.64 


 


            







8 


Cost of Implementation 
 


The following paragraph presents an implementation plan for the county’s consideration. 


 The implementation plans covers all of Fayette County’s water treatment plants.  The cost 


figures do not include benefit costs or current overtime expenditures.  Thus, the following cost 


figures do not represent the organization’s total personnel costs. 


Table IV depicts the cost to implement the plan.  The cost to implement the plan is 


$21,593, or 1.65% of the current payroll cost for these employees.  The plan is based on a scale 


that should prove to be the most competitive in attracting and retaining a quality workforce. 







9 
 


TABLE IV 


Cost of Implementation 


Fayette County Personnel Project 


          
 


 
 


 
 


Classification 


Changes
1 


 
Total 


Implementation 


Cost 


 
Plan 


(Table III) 


 
$21,593 
(1.65%) 


 
$21,593 


 


                                                           
1 Increases are projected based on current payroll total of $1,312,371.  Excluded from this 
figure are salaries for elected officials and contract employees.  The figures presented are 
exclusive of benefit costs. 







10 
 


  
Appendix A 


Position/Grade Analysis by Department 
Fayette County Water System Personnel Project 


  
  PROPOSED CURRENT 


DEPT POSITION GRADE             GRADE 
   
WAT/1 Water Plant Manager - Crosstown 21 817 
WAT/2 Water Plant Manager - South Fayette 21 817 
WAT/3 Facilities Manager 19 823 
WAT/4 Laboratory Manager 19 818 
WAT/5 Water Treatment Plant Operator - Class I 16 814/815 
WAT/6 Water Treatment Plant Operator - Class II 14 813 
WAT/7 Water Treatment Plant Operator - Class III 12 812 
WAT/8 Laboratory Analyst 14 813 
WAT/9 Water Treatment Plant Maintenance Worker 12 811 
WAT/10 Water Treatment Plant Operator Trainee 10  
WAT/11 Wetlands Caretaker 10 810 


 WAT/12 Water System Director 25 
 WAT13 Water System Deputy Director 23 
  







11 
 


Appendix B 
Position/Grade Analysis by Grade 


Fayette County Water System Personnel Project 
 


  


  PROPOSED CURRENT 
DEPT POSITION GRADE             GRADE 


   
WAT/12 Water System Director 25 
WAT13 Water System Deputy Director 23 
WAT/1 Water Plant Manager - Crosstown 21 817 
WAT/2 Water Plant Manager - South Fayette 21 817 
WAT/3 Facilities Manager 19 823 
WAT/4 Laboratory Manager 19 818 
WAT/5 Water Treatment Plant Operator - Class I 16 814/815 
WAT/8 Laboratory Analyst 14 813 
WAT/6 Water Treatment Plant Operator - Class II 14 813 
WAT/9 Water Treatment Plant Maintenance Worker 12 811 
WAT/7 Water Treatment Plant Operator - Class III 12 812 
WAT/10 Water Treatment Plant Operator Trainee 10  
WAT/11 Wetlands Caretaker 10 810 


 
 







12 
 


 


Appendix C 


Georgia Department of Community Affairs Salary Survey Summary* 


Fayette County Water Personnel Project 


 


Position Title 


Minimum 


Annual 


Rate  


Mean 


Minimum 


Annual 


Rate 


Median 


60th 


Percentile 


Minimum 


Annual  


Rate 


3rd 


Quartile 


Minimum 


Annual 


Rate 


80th 


Percentile 


Minimum 


Annual 


Rate 


90th 


Percentile 


Minimum 


Annual  


Rate 


Water Plant Manager $47,103 $46,230 $49,275 $50,264 $50,294 $52,348 


Water Treatment Plant  
Operator III $29,904 $29,561 $29,848 $33,104 $33,301 $36,019 


Laboratory Analyst $29,122 $29,931 $30,046 $31,195 $32,137 $33,280 


  


Position Title 


Maximum 


Annual 


Rate  


Mean 


Maximum 


Annual 


Rate 


Median 


60th 


Percentile 


Maximum 


Annual 


Rate 


3rd 


Quartile 


Maximum 


Annual 


Rate 


80th 


Maximum 


Percentile 


Annual 


Rate 


90th 


Percentile 


Minimum 


Annual  


Rate 


Water Plant Manager $70,477 $72,045 $74,197 $75,267 $77,170 $83,167 


Water Treatment Plant  
Operator III $49,975 $49,819 $53,109 $54,249 $56,690 $59,386 


Laboratory Analyst $45,759 $48,332 $49,109 $50,895 $51,419 $52,021 
 


Source: 2012 State of Georgia Department of Community Affairs Local Government Wage and Salary Survey. Salary data 
derived from the counties of Fulton, Monroe, Newton, Rockdale and Spalding and the cities of Carrollton, College Park, 
Covington, East Point, Fayetteville, Griffin, Hampton, LaGrange, Locust Grove, McDonough, Roswell, Stockbridge and Villa 
Rica. 


 







13 
 


 


Appendix D 


Water Salary Survey Summary* 


City of Griffin Personnel Project 


  


Position Title 


Minimum 


Annual 


Rate 


Mean 


Minimum 


Annual 


Rate 


Median 


3rd 


Quartile 


Annual 


Rate 


Minimum 


Maximum 


Annual 


Rate 


Mean 


Maximum 


Annual 


Rate 


Median 


3rd 


Quartile 


Annual 


Rate 


Maximum 


Mean 


Actual 


Annual 


Salary 


Median 


Actual 


Annual 


Salary 


3rd 


Quartile 


Actual 


Annual 


Salary 


Mean  


# of 


Empl. 


Median  


# of 


 Empl. 


Water/Wastewater 
Treatment Plant 
Superintendent  $51,455 $54,288 $57,141 $80,068 $90,039 $31,878 $59,093 $59,093 $64,387 4.0 2.0 


Water/Wastewater 
Operator - Class I $37,472 $37,472 $40,551 $56,046 $56,046 $60,584 $45,101 $45,101 $45,101 13.5 13.5 


Water/Wastewater 
Operator - Class II $32,799 $29,803 $34,691 $49,807 $45,822 $52,359 $37,973 $37,973 $39,245 4.7 5.0 


Water/Wastewater 
Operator - Class III $32,274 $32,274 $34,227 $47,913 $47,913 $50,594 N/A N/A N/A 20.0 20.0 


Laboratory Manager $46,421 $46,421 $53,182 $69,827 $69,827 $80,068 $32,906 $32,906 $32,906 1.5 1.5 


Laboratory Analyst $32,274 $32,274 $34,227 $47,913 $47,913 $50,594 $30,399 $30,399 $30,399 2.5 2.5 


                        


*Salary survey data derived from Butts County Water & Sewage Authority, Clayton County Water Authority, and the Macon Water Authority. 







14 
 


  
 


Appendix E 


Bureau of Labor Statistics Salary Survey Summary* 


Fayette County Water System 


  


Position Title Employment 


Median 


Hourly Wage 


Mean Hourly 


Wage 


Annual Mean 


Wage 


          


Landscaping and 
Groundskeeping Workers 12,170 $12.19 $12.78 $26,580 


Water and Wastewater 
Treatment Plant and System 
Operators 950 $18.48 $18.87 $39,240 


          


*Source: May 2012 Bureau of Labor Statistics' metropolitan and nonmetropolitan area occupational 
employment and wage for Atlanta-Sandy Springs-Marietta, GA metropolitan area. This 
metropolitan area includes the following counties:  Barrow, Bartow, Butts, Carroll, Cherokee, 
Clayton, Cobb, Coweta, Dawson, DeKalb, Douglas, Fayette, Forsyth, Fulton, Gwinnett, Haralson, 
Heard, Henry, Jasper, Lamar, Meriwether, Newton, Paulding, Pickens, Pike, Rockdale, Spalding, 
and Walton. 





		Human Resources- CVIOG Agenda Request File

		Human Resources- CVIOG Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


New Business #14


Legal County Attorney Dennis Davenport


Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-05 revising provisions pertaining to Motorized Carts within 


unincorporated Fayette County.


On August 15, 2013, Mr. Jason Girolami spoke to the Board of Commissioners about the need to have a unified approach to Fayette 


County's Motorized Cart Ordinances.  In his report, he identified two areas of concern with the various golf cart ordinances throughout 


Fayette County.  Those concerns were:  1) Age Restrictions for driving golf carts that differ between the jurisdictions, and 2)  


Registration / Decals requirements which can be specific for the jurisdictions that residents live in but can become a problem once a 


person crosses from one jurisdiction to another in his golf cart.  At the end of the presentation, the Board directed the County Attorney to 


return to the Board with review on mimicking the age limits from Peachtree City for Fayette County, and for the county to begin the 


process of talking to the other jurisdictions upon creating a reciprocal agreement that each jurisdiction recognized the other jurisdiction's 


registrations. 


 


Ordinance 2014-05 has been drafted with the intention of addressing the concerns that were raised at the August 15, 2013 meeting.


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2014-05 revising provisions pertaining to Motorized Carts within unincorporated 


Fayette County.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


This request is an example of Fayette County working with its municipal partners in an effort to address concerns brought before the 


Board of Commissioners.


New BusinessThursday, March 27, 2014







CHAPTER 10.   MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC. 


ARTICLE III.   MOTORIZED CARTS. 
 


 
Sec. 10-41. Findings; definition. 
 
(a) Findings.  The board of commissioners finds that certain public streets located within the 
unincorporated county are designed and constructed so as to safely permit the use thereof by 
regular vehicular traffic and also the driving thereon of motorized carts. The board of 
commissioners further finds that recreation paths are designed and constructed so as to safely 
permit travel thereon by motorized carts. 
 
(b) Definitions.  The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall 
have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a 
different meaning: 
 
 All-terrain vehicle means any motorized vehicle designed for off-road use which is 
equipped with three or more low pressure tires and with a seat to be straddled by the operator and 
with handlebars for steering control. 
 
 Authorized streets means all such streets which have been authorized for motorized cart 
travel and are on file with the planning and zoning department. The list of authorized streets is 
subject to amendment from time to time by the board of commissioners. 
 
 Automobile means a passenger vehicle primarily designed to legally travel on the 
highways of this state that usually has an engine capable of propelling the vehicle over 35 miles 
per hour. 


 
 County means Fayette County, Georgia. 
 
 Dealer means a person engaged in the business of buying, selling, or exchanging vehicles 
who has an established place of business in this state. 
 
 Electric bicycle means a device with two or three wheels which has a saddle and fully 
operative pedals for human propulsion and also has an electric motor.  For such a device to be 
considered an electric assisted bicycle, it shall meet the requirements of the Federal Motor 
Vehicle Safety Standards, as set forth in 49 C.F.R. Section 571, et seq., and shall operate in such 
a manner that the electric motor disengages or ceases to function when the brakes are applied.  
The electric motor in an electric assisted bicycle shall: 
 


(1) Have a power output of not more than 1,000 watts; 
 
(2) Be incapable of propelling the device at a speed of more than 20 miles per hour 


on level ground; and 
 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.5"



fjones

Draft







(3) Be incapable of further increasing the speed of the device when human power 
alone is used to propel the device at or more than 20 miles per hour. 


 
 Electric personal assistive mobility device or EPAMD means a self-balancing, two non-
tandem wheeled device designed to transport only one person and having an electric propulsion 
system with average power of 750 watts (one horsepower) and a maximum speed of less than 20 
miles per hour on a paved level surface when powered solely by such propulsion system and 
ridden by an operator who weighs 170 pounds. 
 
 Gross weight means the weight of a vehicle without load plus the weight of any load 
thereon. 
 
 Low-speed motor vehicle or LSMV means any four-wheeled electric vehicle whose top 
speed attainable in one mile is greater than 20 miles per hour but not greater than 25 miles per 
hour on a paved level surface and which is manufactured in compliance with those federal motor 
vehicle safety standards for low-speed vehicles set forth in 49 C.F.R. Section 571.500 and in 
effect on January 1, 2001. 
 
 Moped means a motor driven cycle equipped with two or three wheels, with or without 
foot pedals to permit muscular propulsion, and an independent power source providing a 
maximum of two brake horsepower.  If a combustion engine is used, the maximum piston or 
rotor displacement shall be 3.05 cubic inches (50 cubic centimeters) regardless of the number of 
chambers in such power source.  The power source shall be capable of propelling the vehicle, 
unassisted, at a speed not to exceed 30 miles per hour (48.28 kilometers per hour) on level road 
surface and shall be equipped with a power drive system that functions directly or automatically 
only, not requiring clutching or shifting by the operator after the drive system is engaged. 
 
 Motorcycle means every motor vehicle having a seat or saddle for the use of the rider and 
designed to travel on not more than three wheels in contact with the ground, but excluding a 
tractor, all-terrain vehicle, dirt bike, and moped. 
 
 Motor driven cycle means every motorcycle, including every motor scooter, with a motor 
which produces not to exceed five brake horsepower, every bicycle with a motor attached, and 
every moped. 
 
 Motorized cart means all electric and gasoline-powered pleasure carts which are 
commonly called golf cartsevery motor vehicle having no less than three wheels and an unladen 
weight of 1,300 pounds or less and which cannot operate at more than 20 miles per hour. Within 
this article, the terms "motorized cart," "golf cart" and "cart" shall have the same meanings; these 
are the only carts authorized for use under this article. 
 
 Motorized play vehicle means a coaster, scooter, pocket bike, any other alternatively 
fueled device, or other motorized vehicle that is self-propelled by a motor engine, gas or electric, 
and is not otherwise defined in this code as a "motorized cart", "low speed motor vehicle 
(LSMV)" "motor vehicle", "motorcycle", "electric bicycle", motorized skateboard", "electric 
personal assistive mobility device" or "motorized wheelchair". 



fjones

Draft







 
 Motorized skateboard or motorized scooter means a self-propelled device that has a 
motor, gas or electric, a deck upon which a person may ride, not equipped with a seat, and at 
least two tandem wheels in contact with the ground and which is not otherwise defined in this 
Code as a "motor vehicle," "motorcycle," "motorized play vehicle," "electric personal assistive 
mobility device" or "motorized wheelchair." 
 
 Motorized wheelchair means a self-propelled wheelchair that is used by a physically 
disabled person for mobility. 
 
 Pocket motorcycle or pocket bike means a two-wheeled vehicle other than a motor 
vehicle, bicycle with helper motor or a motorized scooter and which is propelled by an internal 
combustion engine, electric motor or other mechanical means, is capable of carrying a rider 
and/or passenger at a speed in excess of 20 miles per hour, and is designed to replicate the 
general appearance of a motorcycle, regardless of the scale of the replication. 
 
 Recreation path means a paved area of generally six feet or more in width that is 
designed or intended for multi-use such as pedestrians, bicyclists, motorized carts, or any other 
approved use. 
 
 Sidewalk means a paved area of generally five feet in width or less that is designed or 
intended for the use of pedestrian traffic only. 
 
Sec. 10-42. Operation of gasoline-powered carts. Registration/transfer requirements. 


 


(a) Required.  It shall be the duty of every owner of an electric or gasoline-powered 
motorized cart or low-speed motor vehicle that is operated over the designated streets, paved 
recreational paths or sidewalks of the unincorporated portion of the County to register the vehicle 
with the County within ten business days of the date of purchase.  Proof of ownership listing the 
vehicle must be presented.  This is to be accomplished at the County Administrative Complex 
where two numerical decals will be issued for each vehicle registered.  A record of each vehicle 
so registered will be completed.  The registration will record the name and address of the owner, 
vehicle manufacturer, model, serial number or VIN, and color. 
 
(b) Registration fee.  The registration fee for motorized carts and low-speed motor vehicles 
shall be $15.00, and the registration shall be effective until the end of the third calendar year in 
which the registration is made.  Registration must be renewed by January 1 of each fourth 
calendar year from the initial registration.  Every renewal will be for a period of three years and 
the fee for said renewal shall be $15.00.  If registration is not made within ten (10) business days 
of purchase or if renewal of registration is not made by January 1 of the required year, a $5.00 
penalty shall be applied for each month the motorized cart remains unregistered.  This additional 
penalty shall be capped at $30.00 and will be in addition to the registration or renewal fee.  In 
addition, those persons wishing to register a vehicle designed for a disabled person, presentation 
of medical verification of a disability is required.  An annotation will be placed on the 
registration document.  A decal will be issued and must be displayed when utilizing parking 


Comment [P1]: This registration scheme is based 
on that currently used by the Town of Tyrone.  



fjones

Draft







designated for the disabled.  Upon termination of the disability, this decal must be removed and 
the vehicle's registration form updated. 
 
(b) Registration fee.  The registration fee for motorized carts or low-speed motor vehicles 
owned by residents of the unincorporated portion of the County shall be $12.00, and the 
registration shall be effective until the next regular registration period. Registration periods shall 
occur every five years, beginning in 2011.  In addition to the initial $12.00 fee for the registration 
and decal, an annual registration/user fee of $60.00 shall be charged to nonresidents of the 
unincorporated portion of the County. The nonresident fee is due by January 31 each year until 
such time as the cart is sold or otherwise disposed of. This nonresident registration/user fee shall 
be prorated for carts purchased after January 31 of the first calendar year of ownership, unless 
the nonresident had previously paid the registration/user fee the same calendar year, in which 
case the $12.00 registration fee would be required to register and obtain decals for the new cart.  
If the cart is not registered within ten business days of purchase, a $20.00 penalty will be applied 
in addition to the registration fee; and the cart shall be considered an unregistered cart after the 
ten business-day period.  In addition, those persons wishing to register a vehicle designed for a 
disabled person, presentation of medical verification of a disability is required.  An annotation 
will be placed on the registration document.  A decal will be issued and must be displayed when 
utilizing parking designated for the disabled.  Upon termination of the disability, this decal must 
be removed and the vehicle's registration form updated. 
 
(c) Revocation.  The registration of gasoline-powered motorized carts will be revoked if the 
motorized cart is not in compliance with subsection (f) of this section and a new registration will 
be required upon compliance with subsection (f) of this section. 
 
(d) Reciprocal agreement.  A reciprocal agreement exists between the County and the City of 
Fayetteville, the City of Peachtree City and the Town of Tyrone (the “Cities”).  The County will 
honor/recognize permits issued from the Cities in the unincorporated portion of the County.  
Residents of the Cities will be afforded the same privileges as those permit holders who are 
residents of the unincorporated portion of the County and all sections of this article will apply to 
the residents of the Cities as well.  Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, 
the minimum age for operating a motorized cart or low-speed motor vehicle in the 
unincorporated portion of the County is 12 years old with an accompanying adult and 15 years 
old with a valid learner’s permit. 
 
(e) Transfer of ownership.  Upon the sale of a golf cart or low-speed motor vehicle to another 
person who will operate the vehicle over the streets or paved recreation paths of the 
unincorporated portion of the County, the registration must be transferred to the new owner 
within ten business days of the change in ownership.  Transfer cost will be $5.00.  If the transfer 
registration is not accomplished within ten business days, a $5.00 penalty shall be applied for 
each month the registration has not been updated.  This additional fee shall be capped at $30.00 
and will be in addition to the transfer fee. 
 
(f) Gasoline-powered motorized carts. 
 


Comment [P2]: This registration scheme is based 
on that currently used by Peachtree City. 


Comment [P3]: Peachtree City and Tyrone 
currently have provisions in their ordinances 
granting reciprocity for residents of both cities.  If 
Fayette County desires to participate in reciprocity 
with these cities, as well as Fayetteville, it may be 
necessary for these cities to revise their ordinances 
accordingly. 



fjones

Draft







(a1) Every gasoline-powered motorized cart shall at all times be equipped with an 
exhaust system in good working order and in constant operation, meeting the 
following specifications: 


 
(1a) The exhaust system shall include the piping leading from the flange of the 


exhaust manifold to, and including, the muffler(s) and exhaust pipe(s) or 
include any and all parts specified by the manufacturer. 


 
(2b) The exhaust system and its elements shall be securely fastened, including 


the consideration of missing or broken brackets or hangers. 
 
(3c) The engine and power mechanism of every gasoline-powered motorized 


cart shall be so equipped, adjusted and tuned, as to prevent the escape of 
excessive smoke or fumes. 


 
(b2) It shall be unlawful for the owner of any gasoline-powered motorized cart to 


operate, or permit the operation of, such cart on which any device controlling or 
abating atmospheric emissions, which is placed on a cart by the manufacturer, has 
been altered, rendered unserviceable or removed. 


 
(g) Rental motorized carts and low-speed motor vehicles.  Motorized cart and low-speed 
motor vehicle dealers and distributors, as well as other commercial establishments, may rent golf 
carts and low-speed motor vehicles to the public for use on the streets and paved recreation 
paths.  Each such establishment renting motorized carts or low-speed motor vehicles shall be 
required to register each and shall maintain a written record of each person renting a motorized 
cart or low-speed motor vehicle.  Renters shall be required to furnish positive identification and 
shall be furnished a copy of this article to read.  Each renter must be at least 16 years of age and 
possess a valid driver's license.  Registration fees and transfer fees shall be the same as those in 
subsections (a) and (b) of this section.  Motorized carts and low-speed motor vehicles for 
temporary use by the County during special events are exempt from the requirements of this 
subsection. 
 
(h) Age, number of registrants limited.  Only those persons 18 years of age or older may 
register a motorized cart or low-speed motor vehicle.  Registration may be in one person's name 
only and the registration form must be signed by that person. 
 
Sec. 10-43. Operating regulations. 
 
(a) Any person who possesses a valid motor vehicle driver's license and is at least sixteen 
(16) years of age may operate a motorized cart or low-speed motor vehicle on the recreation 
paths and authorized streets of the unincorporated portion of the County. 
 
(b) Any person who possesses a valid motor vehicle learner's permit and is at least fifteen 
(15) years of age may operate a motorized cart or low-speed motor vehicle on the recreation 
paths and authorized streets of the unincorporated portion of the County, so long as such person 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.5"


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.5"



fjones

Draft







is accompanied in the front seat by a person who possesses a valid motor vehicle driver's license 
and is at least eighteen (18) years of age. 
 
(c) No person less than fifteen (15) years of age shall be permitted to operate a motorized 
cart or low-speed motor vehicle on the recreation paths and authorized streets of the 
unincorporated portion of the County under any circumstances.  Exception: Those persons who 
are 12 years of age or older may drive a motorized cart or low-speed motor vehicle on designated 
streets and paved recreation paths of the unincorporated portion of the County if they are 
accompanied in the front seat by a person at least 18 years of age who holds a valid motor 
vehicle driver's license. 
 
(d) All operators of motorized carts and low-speed motor vehicles shall abide by all traffic 
regulations applicable to vehicular traffic when using the recreation paths and authorized streets 
of the unincorporated portion of the County. Recreation paths Where recreation paths exist, they 
must be used in preference to parallel authorized streets. 
 
(e) Motorized carts and low-speed motor vehicles shall not be operated on sidewalks at any 
time. 
 
(f) Motorized carts and low-speed motor vehicles may be operated over authorized streets or 
recreation paths of the unincorporated portion of the County only during daylight hours, unless 
such motorized carts or low-speed motor vehicles are equipped with functional headlights and 
taillights. 
 
(g) It shall be unlawful for the owner of any motorized cart or low-speed motor vehicle to 
operate, or permit the operation of, such cart over the recreation paths or authorized streets of the 
unincorporated portion of the County in violation of this article. 
 
Sec. 10-44. Recreation path users prohibited uses. 
 
 Recreation paths shall not be used by: 
 


(1) Automobiles and trucks, except authorized maintenance vehicles; 
 
(2) Motorcycles; 
 
(3) Street and trail motorized bikes (not to include electric bicycles) or vehicles, 


including, but not limited to, all-terrain vehicles, commonly known as ATVs; 
 
(4) Minibikes and mopeds; 
 
(5) Horses, mules or donkeys; and 
 
(6) Go-carts. 
 
(7) Motorized play vehicles; 



fjones

Draft







 
(8) Unregistered electric motorized carts; and 
 
(9) Unregistered gasoline-powered motorized carts. 


 
Sec. 10-45. Hazardous activities and special rules. 
 
 No individual or group shall engage in hazardous activities on the recreation paths or 
authorized streets. Such hazardous activities include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 


(1) Racing of any kind, except for special events approved by the countyCounty. 
 
(2) Blocking of public access, except for special events approved by the 


countyCounty. 
 
(3) Pedestrians, skaters and permitted vehicles shall not loiter or park on recreation 


path bridges or in underpasses. 
 
(4) Pedestrians should be given due consideration and reasonable right-of-way by 


other users of the recreation paths to ensure safe passage. 
 
(5) An audible warning shall be given by operators of motorized carts and low-speed 


motor vehicles and other users of the recreation paths, such as bicyclists and 
skaters, when approaching pedestrians from the rear. 


 
(6) All laws and ordinances relative to alcohol and the use thereof, including open 


container laws, apply to the recreation paths. 
 
Sec. 10-46. Liability. 
 
 Each person using the recreation paths is liable for his or her own actions. 
 
Sec. 10-47. Penalties. 
 
 Any person who violates the terms of this article shall be punished as provided in section 
1-8 of the county code. 



fjones

Draft





		Legal- Golf Course Ordinance Agenda Request File

		Legal- Golf Course Ordinance Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Consent Agenda #10


Street Lights Public Works Director Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's recommendation to add Southmill Subdivision to the Fayette County Street Light Program.


The Fayette County Street Lighting Program illuminates streets in participating subdivisions in accordance with standards of the 


American National Standard Practice for Roadway Lighting, 1973.  In September, 1983, the Board of Commissioners created Fayette 


County Street Light Districts.  Platted subdivisions are eligible to become a Street Light District  when there are at least ten property 


owners and at 66.67% voting in favor of creating a Street Light District.  This petition represents eighteen parcels that are 100% in favor 


of creating a street light district.   


 


The developer has purchased six 150-watt post tops.  Each light is $16.43 per month for a total monthly bill of $98.58.   This assessment 


will be added to Southmill Subdivision and the expense will be shared by the property owners on the annual property tax bills.  The 


annual assessment for participants in Southmill Street Light District will be $70.


Approval of staff's recommendation to add Southmill Subdivision to the Fayette County Street Light Program.


These additional lights will cost $98.58 per month per Georgia Power.  Assessments for street lights are levied on the tax bills for 


participants in the street light program.  The residents have agreed to pay the additional assessments required to add these lights.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


A similar request was approved by the Board of Commissioners at the January 23, 2014 meeting and at the March 11, 2014 meeting.  


Fayette County's Street Light Program is slated to be heard at the April 2014 Board of Commissioners Retreat.


ConsentThursday, March 27, 2014













		Street Lights- Southmill Agenda Request File

		Street Lights- Southmill Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


New Business #13


Fayette County Water System Water System Director Lee Pope


Consideration of staff's recommendation to increase the sewer billing fees that the Water System charges to the Peachtree City Water & 


Sewerage Authority, the City of Fayetteville, the Town of Tyrone, and the Town of Brooks from $1.00 to $1.62.


The Fayette County Water System bills sewer for the Peachtree City Water & Sewerage Authority, the City of Fayetteville, the Town of 


Tyrone, and the Town of Brooks.  The sewer bills are based on water consumption and the bill is sent to the customers each month on 


the same bill with their water bill.  Currently, the Water System charges $1.00 per bill for each sewer bill that is sent out. 


 


Careful analysis was conducted of the cost associated for the Fayette County Water System to bill sewer for these four entities.   The 


analysis takes into account both direct and indirect costs.  The analysis showed that the cost to do sewer billing is significantly more than 


what is being collected.  Therefore, the Water System is recommending raising the billing fee from $1.00 per bill to $1.62 per bill. 


 


This increase would not go into effect until July 1, 2014 with the new budget year to provide adequate notice to Peachtree City of 


Fayetteville, Town of Tyrone and Town of Brooks. The Peachtree City Water & Sewerage Authority has already reviewed the analysis 


and agrees with this recommendation.


Consideration of staff's recommendation to increase the sewer billing fees that the Water System charges to the Peachtree City Water & 


Sewerage Authority, the City of Fayetteville, the Town of Tyrone, and the Town of Brooks from $1.00 to $1.62.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


This increase would not go into effect until July 1, 2014 with the new budget year to provide adequate notice to Peachtree City of 


Fayetteville, Town of Tyrone and Town of Brooks. The Peachtree City Water & Sewerage Authority has already reviewed the analysis 


and agrees with this recommendation.


New BusinessMarch 27, 2014







ANNUAL YEAR 2012
FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM


Number Water System Bills 332,545 Old Rate
$1.00


Yearly Water Billing Direct Costs1 Actual Per Bill
Postage $132,514.64 $0.3985 Revenue Direct Indirect2 Total Variance
Ink Cartridge Bill Printer $3,672.00 $0.0110 $126,528 $62,965 $141,954 $204,919 ($78,391)
Water Bills (Paper) $5,184.38 $0.0156 $14,650 $7,290 $16,436 $23,727 ($9,077)
Permit Envelopes (Permit, Return & Window) $13,340.13 $0.0401 $4,775 $2,376 $5,357 $7,733 ($2,958)
Stuffer/Inserter Equipment $10,776.00 $0.0324 $144 $72 $162 $233 ($89)


$165,487.15 $0.4976 $146,097 $72,703 $163,909 $236,612 ($90,515)
1 Includes 34,069 Delinquent Notices


Proposed
Jurisdiction # Bills % Yrly Weight $1.62
PTC WASA 126,528 38.0% 86.6%
City of Fayetteville 14,650 4.4% 10.0% Revenue Direct Indirect2 Total Variance
Town of Tyrone 4,775 1.4% 3.3% $204,975 $62,965 $141,954 $204,919 $56
Town of Brooks 144 0.0% 0.1% $23,733 $7,290 $16,436 $23,727 $6


146,097 43.9% 100.0% $7,736 $2,376 $5,357 $7,733 $2
$233 $72 $162 $233 $0


Water System Department # Bills $236,677 $72,703 $163,909 $236,612 $65
Billing Weighted Sewer $128,390
Customer Service Weighted Sewer $35,519 2 Indirect Costs times Jurisdictional Weight


$163,909 Maintaining services, customer records, etc. within the Munis software
Opening, sorting mail, & posting payments
Stuffing, sorting, and mailing bulk mail
Electronic file processing
Bank Deposits
ACH processing
Penalty processing
Return check processing
Adjustment processing
Customer correspondence (letters, returns bills, etc…)
Customer service incoming/outgoing calls
Reports (AR, Aging, totals, usage etc…)
Tyler Support
Forms, TCM, Ebill etc…


Water System Billing Analysis







EE # Org Department Job Class Desc Budget Actual


Billing
# EE # Org Department Job Class Desc Budget Actual
1 166 50541013 WATER SYS BILLING SENIOR BILLING REPRESENTATIVE $41,987 $41,987
1 2741 50541013 WATER SYS BILLING SENIOR BILLING REPRESENTATIVE $35,323 $35,323
1 1406 50541013 WATER SYS BILLING BILLING OPER SPUV WATER $45,216 $45,216
1 2436 50541013 WATER SYS BILLING BILLING REPRESENTATIVE $31,220 $31,220
1 3185 50541013 WATER SYS BILLING BILLING REPRESENTATIVE $32,000 $32,000
1 3194 50541013 WATER SYS BILLING BILLING REPRESENTATIVE $30,459 $30,459
1 1585 50541016 WATER SYS METER READING SENIOR METER READER $35,323 $35,323
1 264 50541016 WATER SYS METER READING METER READER $38,989 $38,989
1 1807 50541016 WATER SYS METER READING METER READER $30,459 $30,459
9 $320,976 $320,976


Customer Service
# EE # Org Department Job Class Desc Budget Actual
1 1575 50541012 WATER SYS CUSTOMER SERVICE SENIOR CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRES $35,323 $35,323
1 411 50541012 WATER SYS CUSTOMER SERVICE CUSTOMER SERVICE SUPERVISOR $45,216 $45,216
1 271 50541012 WATER SYS CUSTOMER SERVICE FIELD SERVICE REP $45,216 $45,216
1   1650 50541012 WATER SYS CUSTOMER SERVICE FIELD SERVICE REP $37,111 $37,111
1   2667 50541012 WATER SYS CUSTOMER SERVICE FIELD SERVICE REP $33,620 $33,620
1 172 50541012 WATER SYS CUSTOMER SERVICE CUSTOMER SERVICE REP $35,323 $35,323
1 2449 50541012 WATER SYS CUSTOMER SERVICE CUSTOMER SERVICE REP $32,000 $32,000
1 3073 50541012 WATER SYS CUSTOMER SERVICE CUSTOMER SERVICE REP $30,459
1 3317 50541012 WATER SYS CUSTOMER SERVICE CUSTOMER SERVICE REP $30,459 $30,459
1 3504 50541012 WATER SYS CUSTOMER SERVICE CUSTOMER SERVICE REP $30,459
10 $294,268 $355,186


$615,244 $676,162


Billing $320,976 $320,976
Customer Service $294,268 $355,186


$615,244 $676,162


Billing Weighted Sewer 40.0% 40.0%
Customer Service Weighted Sewer 10.0% 10.0%


Billing $128,390 $128,390
Customer Service $29,427 $35,519


$157,817 $163,909







ANNUAL YEAR 2012
FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM


Water
Month Services Billed
January 27,523
February 27,535
March 27,571
April 27,658
May 27,699
June 27,881
July 27,713
August 27,852
September 27,720
October 27,752
November 27,821
December 27,820
Total 332,545


PTC WASA City of Fayetteville Town of Tyrone Town of Brooks
Month Services Billed $Amount Services Billed $Amount Services Billed $Amount Services Billed $Amount
January 10,489 $10,489 1,212 $1,212 391 $391 12 $12
February 10,492 $10,492 1,216 $1,216 390 $390 12 $12
March 10,523 $10,523 1,221 $1,221 395 $395 12 $12
April 10,539 $10,539 1,215 $1,215 394 $394 12 $12
May 10,545 $10,545 1,224 $1,224 400 $400 12 $12
June 10,618 $10,618 1,229 $1,229 400 $400 12 $12
July 10,531 $10,531 1,219 $1,219 398 $398 12 $12
August 10,591 $10,591 1,227 $1,227 403 $403 12 $12
September 10,532 $10,532 1,219 $1,219 399 $399 12 $12
October 10,537 $10,537 1,218 $1,218 398 $398 12 $12
November 10,560 $10,560 1,225 $1,225 407 $407 12 $12
December 10,571 $10,571 1,225 $1,225 400 $400 12 $12


Grand Total 126,528 $126,528 14,650 $14,650 4,775 $4,775 144 $144
165,666.00$                            


Annual Year Cost $ Amount
Postage $113,411
Ink Catridge Bill Printer $3,240
Water Bills (Paper) $4,991
Permit Envelopes $7,452
#9 Return Evelopes $5,336
#10 Window Envelopes (used 
for mailing Delinquent Notices, 
re-mail etc...) $552
Stuffer/Inserter Equipment $10,776







ANNUAL YEAR 2012
FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM


 # of Delinquent Notices 
Printed and Mailed 34,069


Postage for Delinquent Notices $15,672 $165,487
Paper cost (for deliquent 
notices) $193


Postage meter $3,432
Postage meter ink $432


All sewer services are based on the water usage
Sewer services are maintained and billed on the same Munis account and also printed on the same water bill mailed out


Employee Costs
Maintaining services,customer records, etc. within the Munis software
Opening,sorting mail, & posting payments
Stuffing, sorting, and mailing bulk mail
Electronic file processing
Bank Deposits
ACH processing
Penalty processing
Return check processing
Adjustment processing
Customer correspondence (letters, returns bills, etc…)
Customer service incoming/outgoing calls
Reports (AR, Aging, totals, usage etc…)
Tyler Support
Forms, TCM, Ebill etc…





		Water System- Sewer Fee Changes Agenda Request File

		Water System- Sewer Fee Changes Backup







